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( PROCEEDI NGS COMVENCED AT 9: 05 AM

Openi ng Remar ks

THE CHAI R Good norning, everyone. M
nanme is Kavig Kalurag, and |I'mthe chairperson of the
Nunavut | npact Revi ew Board or N RB

On behal f of the Board, | would [ike to wel cone
you back to Day 6 of the NIRB's public hearing
associ ated with the NIRB's assessnent of Agnico Eagle
Mnes Limted Meliadi ne extension proposal, which is a
nodi fication of the Meliadine Gold Mne project. Thank
you to the community of Rankin Inlet for hosting us
during the public hearing.

A quick rem nder, please -- | want to rem nd you
pl ease turn off your cell phones or put them on
"silent" before we begin. Prior to starting our
norning with an opening prayer -- will be given by
David Om ngayak. Pl ease stand.

Openi ng Prayer

THE CHAI R: Thank you, David Om ngayak,
for the opening prayer to the start of our day. Quy
Ali kut just |ost his nephew -- or his niece, so we wll
t hi nk of people who have |l ost their | oved ones during
their stay here during the hearing. W'IlIl think of
them W're going to have a nonent of silence.

Monment of Sil ence

THE CHAI R Yes. Keep those in -- keep
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the loved onces that we've lost in mnd throughout the
day.

The Nunavut | npact Review Board is holding this
public hearing to hear evidence, ask questions, and
listen to cooments and concerns of registered
i ntervenors, community representatives, and nenbers of
the public in order to assess the potential ecosystemc
and soci oeconom c effects of the changes to the
exi sting Meliadine Gold Mne project proposed by Agnico
Eagl e under the extension proposal.

This nmorning we wll be picking up where we |eft
off on Saturday from Agenda |Item 10, Subsection 11,
with questioning to the Sayisi Dene and Nort hl ands
Denesuline First Nation and then the final intervenor
presentation fromthe Athabasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land
Corporations, which will wap up the technical session.
Then we will start the community roundtable.

Thank you to the community representatives for
your patience in attending throughout the technical
sessions. W hope you have found it to be informative,
and we | ook forward to hearing from you.

For those of you in the hall, we ask that you sign
in at the table as you enter the hall for each of the
sessi ons today, norning, afternoon, and evening. This
wi Il help the Board keep an accurate record of

at t endance.
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Al t hough the Board has designed this public
hearing to take place in person, the Board has al so
provi ded an audi o-video link for this hearing so that
parties providing support to the representatives in the
room can view the proceedi ngs renotely.

W will do everything we can to ensure that the
renote link remains stable; however, if the online |ink
Is disrupted, the Board will continue with the
I n-person proceedi ngs.

Si mul taneous interpretation of the proceedings is
bei ng provided throughout the neetings from
interpreters here in Rankin Inlet. In the Zoom feed
you can choose the | anguage feed you want to hear, but
when you go to speak, you may have to turn off the
interpretation feed to avoi d feedback.

For the people here in Rankin Inlet, receivers are
avai l able fromthe sign-in table, and receivers are set
to: Channel 1 is the floor sound; Channel 2, English;
Channel 3 is Inuktitut; and Channel 4 is Dene. Please
have patience as we shift between speakers, and for the
sake of our interpreters, sound techs, and court
reporters, please wait until | call your name before
you speak.

If you're participating by Zoom when your nane is
called, please click on the "raise your hand" button at

the bottomof the screen, and this will help the techs
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identify you nore quickly so that they can unnute your
line and turn on your canera.

I f you are having trouble hearing the proceedi ngs,
pl ease see our technical support, Ryan Denpster, from
Pido at the side of the room |If you're having
troubles with the online feed, please enail Em |y Koide
at ekoi de@i rb. ca.

The Board rem nds everyone participating in this
hearing that no one is allowed to record or rebroadcast
t he i mages, video, or audio of these proceedings in any
formw thout the express consent of the Nunavut I npact
Revi ew Board. Failing to follow these board directions
may result in sanctions by the Board, including
suspendi ng access to the live feed or being asked to
| eave the hall.

The NIRB is generating a transcript fromthese
proceedi ngs, which will be available follow ng the
hearing on the NNRB's public registry. |f your
organi zati on has had new representatives join the
heari ng today, please advise the Board's |egal counsel,
Teresa Meadows, so we can nmake sure to update our |ist.

As you may have noticed, these proceedings are
open to the nedia and are being attended by nedia
representatives. To nenbers of the nedia attending the
neetings in person, we ask that you check in at the

front table and wear a press badge or sinmlar
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identification throughout these proceedings so that it
is clear to parties which nedia outlet you're
representing.

Medi a participating online should provide notice
to Ryan Barry, the Board's interimexecutive director,
at rbarry@irb.ca, and inquiries from nedi a
representatives should al so be sent to Ryan.

The Board wel cones the nedia providing information
about these neetings to those who cannot attend;
however, the Board nenbers and our staff cannot take
guestions or provide interviews to the nedia or nake
public coments regarding these neetings while we're
under way.

Before we return to our agenda, | have a few quick
housekeepi ng natters. The washroons are | ocated
outside this roomin the | obby area. Exits are |ocated
t hrough the nain doors to the | obby on the side of the
room and at the front and back corners.

As you see fromthe agenda, today's session is
scheduled for 9 AMto 5 PMcentral tine, wth an
evening session from6:30 to 9 PM There will be a
m d- norni ng break, a |lunch break around noon centra
time, a md -afternoon break, a supper break, and then
one break -- one health break during the evening
sessi on.

When you're |leaving the hall for breaks or at the
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end of the day, please turn off -- the interpretation
receivers off and return themto the table as you enter
the hall. The Board appreciates everyone continuing to
conply with the Board's directions for the public
hearing. |1'mnot going to restate them but rem nd
everyone to be aware of our interpreters and court
reporters when you' re speaking so that we can ensure
everyone is heard and under st ood.

Before we return to questions to the Sayisi Dene
and Northl ands Denesuline First Nation, they have a
clarification to make. Benjam n Denechezhe.

MR. DENECHEZHE: Thank you, Madam Chair.

| say good norning to everyone here. Benjamn
Denechezhe, Northlands First Nati on.

W had a quick clarification. | would like to
direct you to Slide 16 in our presentation. During our
presentation on Saturday, we indicated that Sayisi Dene
First Nation and Northlands First Nation do not support
the building of the wind farmas currently proposed.
When we said "as currently proposed", we neant that
Sayi si Dene First Nation and Northl ands Denesuli ne
First Nation do not support the wind farmin the
current proposed |ocation. Thank you, Madam
THE CHAI R Now we' Il return to the
techni cal session. Questions to the Sayisi Dene and

Nort hl ands Denesuline First Nation. |f any of the
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parties in the audi ence have questions, please raise
your hand, and we'll get you the m crophone fromthe
I ntervenors. Nunavut Tunngavi k | ncorporated, Gbri el
Ni rl ungayuk.

MR, NI RLUNGAYUK: Thank you. Good norni ng.
Gabriel N rlungayuk from Nunavut Tunngavi k

I ncor por at ed.

| would like to thank the presentation done by our
Dene friends from Saskat chewan and Manitoba. | really
appreci ate the presentation that you have. W don't
have any questions for them Thank you.

THE CHAI R Kivalliqg Inuit Association,
any questions? Luis Manzo.

MR MANZO Thank you, Madam Chai r man.
Good norning, everyone. Luis Manzo, Kivalliqg Inuit
Associ ation.

Thank you for the presentation to the friends of
Saskat chewan and Manitoba. No questions at this tine.
THE CHAI R Gover nnment of Nunavut, any
questions? Daniel Haney.

MR. HANEY: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Dani el Haney, Governnent of Nunavut.

Thank you, Sayisi Dene First Nation and Northl ands
Denesuline First Nation, for your presentation. W
have no questions. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Gover nnent of Canada
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depart nents, Spencer Dewar.
MR. DEWAR: Quj annam i k, Madam Chair,
Spencer Dewar .

On behal f of the Governnent of Canada, thank you
for the presentation. W have no questions.
THE CHAI R Kangi gl i nig Hunters and
Trappers Organi zati on. Any questions, Noel Kal udjak?
Kangi gl i niq Hunters and Trappers Organi zati on Questions
Sayi si Dene First Nation and Northl ands Denesul i ne
First Nation
MR. KALUDJAK: Thank you, Madam Chair. Noel
Kal udj ak, Kangiqglinig Hunters and Trappers
Organi zation. Good norni ng, everyone. | |ook forward
to this day of these sessions.

| have a couple questions to our fellow nei ghbours
down south of us. They are also affected by activities
around their communities, and they have been seeing
this effectiveness affected and introduction to mning
| onger periods than we have in the Kivallig. 1 would
like to hear if the caribou mgration and ani nal
novenent around their area is affected by foreign
activities such as mning and novenent of equi pnent and
human popul ation. | understand they have nore
experience than we do, and also we are nore isol ated,
and our caribou mgration has been | ess affected so

far, and | would |like to hear the -- our potential of

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




860

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

being affected and the caribou mgration and ani nal
novenent in our area if the expansi on goes ahead.

Thank you.

THE CHAI R First we'll go to Sayisi Dene,
Geof f Bussi dor.

MR BUSSI DOR: Good norning. Thank you for

t he questi on.

The mning activity is south and east and west of
us, so we don't have any mne activity around our area,
but there is a concern because the -- well, there's
several | odges and outcanps that are permtted to
provi de hunting to big-gane hunters, and we have no
control over those activities. So it does affect the
m gration comng to us, but occasionally we do get the
caribou comng to our conmunities, and we've had sone
experiences that were not appreciated, and it was the
| ack of respect that was shown to us during those
negative experiences that we didn't appreciate when we
did -- we were blessed with caribou, and I'm sure the
caribou felt the sane.

But other than that, we don't have any other --
we're isolated as well, and we're also relying on

di esel generation of power in our communities, and we

don't have direct power from Manitoba Hydro or -- nor
our satellite comunity as well. Marsi
THE CHAI R Benj am n Denechezhe.
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MR. DENECHEZHE: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Thank you for your question. Speaking about the
hi story of the caribou, as | renenber being told by ny
father and ny grandfather, before our tine, caribou
used to mgrate by the thousands, and during those days
those caribou used to mgrate further to Rei ndeer Lake
and al ong the Cochrane River, and that's how many
caribou used to mgrate around that area. But cari bou

novenents can never be predicted how and when they

travel. A few years back in the fall, | believe it was
about two thousand -- 2013 or so or sonewhere around
that area in the fall, there was a cl eanup bei ng done

i n Ennadai Lake, and there was a chopper that | anded at
the airport, and | happened to see that chopper, and
there was a -- Kelly. Hs nane is Kelly. He's a -- |
heard he's fromthis area, and he's a pilot now. He
was one of the people that | met there, and he told ne
there's cari bou up ahead not too far fromhere. So |
asked himto show ne the location, and it's just a few
mles north of Cochrane River. The reason I'mtelling
you i s because cari bou can mgrate any tine.

As a result of that information, we seen caribou
that fall, the first tinme in many years. There was
|l ots of caribou that fall before freeze-up. And then
the follow ng year it never cane again. |t never

happened agai n.
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So cari bou can nove anywhere, and there's no
boundari es or nothing to hold them wherever they want
to go.

So as far as mning activities in our area, we are
very careful because the | eadership in our conmunity,
especially Lac Brochet, they want to naintain and
protect the land as it is, and they've made it clear
that they'll continue to do that.

But our relatives, only 25 mles -- 25 mnutes air
ride, which is Saskatchewan, they have a better
understanding of mne activities because they're just
next door to them The caribou used to mgrate in

around the northern Saskat chewan and northern Manitoba

in our area, but lately they haven't -- their mgration
route have changed over the years.

But mning activity does affect caribou. It does.
And when we | ook at -- [ook into our solutions how we

can better understand and preserve for the long termin

the future, |ike ny colleague had nentioned that a | ot
of activities in our area, we have no control. That
has been going on for -- for sone tinme now, but we're

trying to hear our voices, and we're trying to do our
best to be heard because that is our |ivelihood.

So, yes, it does affect because we experience it,
and we've seen and we know about it. Masi.

THE CHAI R Kangi gl i nig Hunters and
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Trappers Organi zati on, Noel Kal udjak.

MR. KALUDJAK: Thank you, Madam Chair. Noel
Kal udj ak, Kangiqglinig Hunters and Trappers

Or gani zat i on.

My next -- thank you for your answers. Thank you
very much. M next question is about the |akes and
rivers around our area. Do you think they wll be
affected by increasing activities of the m ning and

surroundi ng areas? Thank you.

THE CHAI R Sayi si Dene First Nation,
Geof f Bussi dor.
MR. BUSSI DOR: Good norning, again. Geoff

Bussi dor, Sayisi Dene First Nation.

There is nention of all the things that can be
done to nmake sure they're -- you know, the diffuser was
mentioned as -- to break down the -- to catch all the
nasty contamnants in the effluent and everything |like
that, but there's still -- while there's indication by
the community nmenbers that the water is no -- is no
| onger the sane and tea is no |longer the colour it used
to be and the -- and now there's a -- you know, the
communi ty-w de drinking water avoi dance nessage. And
so it seens like there is sonething that -- | don't
know if that's the internal systemor whether that --

i f the water does conme from Meli adi ne Lake and this is

happening, | would think there is sone influence, and
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it needs to be, you know, thoroughly checked out and
i nvestigated, | guess. So ...

And the river systens, | guess, is all connected
together, and so there's got to be better nonitoring
and have nore involvenent in checking and nonitoring

it. That's what | would reconmend. WY

THE CHAI R Benj am n Denechezhe.
MR. DENECHEZHE: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Thank you for your question, Noel. Wenever you

| ook at sonething or you do sonething, the Canadi an
Governnment has a regulation that pertain to the safety
and wel | ness of all Canadian citizens. There's a |aw
in place to protect. But when you have activities and
start taking the |and apart and you use water to

di scharge and attract and put everything in what you're
getting at, it wll never be the sane. Certainly there
will be stats indicating -- sanples indicating the
testing of the water and everything, but the result is
it will never be the sane.

As indicated by the Elders, the know edge keepers
of this land al so notice the changes that's taken pl ace
with their water as they have seen it firsthand with
the tea. They are the ones that notice those changes
because they are the ones that |ive around these areas,
and t hey know.

So as far as water connecting the river system and
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al so carries on to the fish, I know that in the | ong
termit is going to change -- it wll -- but we don't
know t he extent of how the results would be and if
there will be any other associated inpacts that will be
in the long-termeffects.

| believe that water is inportant for all of us,
and we have to put ways because the El ders are already
noticing the difference, and we have to listen to them

So ny thoughts regarding the changes to the water

system the |lakes and the rivers, it wll have an
I npact. Masi.
THE CHAI R Kangi gl i nig Hunters and

Trappers Organi zati on, Noel Kal udjak.
MR KALUDJAK: Thank you, Madam Chair. Noe
Kal udj ak, Kangi glinig Hunters and Trappers
Associ ation -- Organization.

Thank you for your answers. One final question:
Does the Sayisi Dene Nation and the Northl and
Denesul ine First Nation have the sanme visual aspect of
us as the caribou can see -- would see those |arge
objects that are turning in the path of their
m gration? Do you have the sane concern as the people
of the Kivallig, howit will affect the m grati on when
they see the turbines turning in the distance? A
sinple question: Do you agree with the Kangiqgliniq

Hunters and Trappers Association that the caribou can

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




866

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

see a quite far distance and the | arge objects that are
turning? Thank you.

THE CHAI R Sayi si Dene First Nation,

Geof f Bussi dor.

MR. BUSSI DOR: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Thank you for the question. Caribou are sensitive
animals. They go by scent, noise, and seeing is also
one of their ways of sensing. And they go down into
the treed areas, and | don't know how tall the tallest
trees are where they go, but there are caribou that are
down into the woodl and areas too that inhabit dense
forest where trees are taller.

But if the plans that are put in place of stopping
the wind turbines fromturning when the caribou are at
a certain distance and it is followed, it nmay not be
such a negative inpact, but the distance that's going
to be required will need further investigation. The
i dea of extending the 5-kilonetre threshold to 10 is
good, but further may be required depending on their
reactions.

But | do agree with the Rankin Hunters and
Trappers Organi zation. |If they feel like it's going to
be inpacting in a nmajor way, they would know. They're
the hunters and trappers, and they're
t he on-the-1 and-based organi zati on.

And being out on the tundra, one of the Elders
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from back hone, she says that when you're out on the
tundra, even snmall objects seemhuge, and it's true.
Sonetines you'll mstake a swan that's sitting out on
the tundra for a bear because of the way the vision is
of -- when you're out there, and -- so when you have a
huge turbine, | guess it would affect the cari bou
because it wll seemeven bigger. Masi.

THE CHAI R Nor t hl ands Denesul i ne Fir st
Nat i on, Benjam n Denechezhe.

MR. DENECHEZHE: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Thank you for your question. W have --
Nort hl ands First Nation have the sanme understandi ng
about the caribou, the way the hunters and trappers
feel about it. Caribous are a very sensitive ani nal
t hat we depend on.

In the Whodl ands, in the tree lines, caribou
are -- they know -- they know the area when it pertain
to the woodl and, the tree line. They see rocks here on
the | ake and so forth. But they also know -- notice
danger right away when they hear noise, because |I'ma
hunter nyself. No matter how far the distance is on
the | ake, that you approach them and hear that
snowmbil e, they are already alert. On many occasi ons
they already know that you're present. So they have a
good vi sion and a good heari ng.

So imagine if you have a big wind -- windmll
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standing up. And |'ve seen those wwndmlls in Northern
Ontario, and they're pretty big. They're massive. And
to bring that in the area where there's no trees, only
tundra as far as your eyes can see, if you bring an
object like that, you'll see it froma distance. And
the noise that they nake are tested, and they say it's
very |low, but we cannot say that it does not affect the
cari bou because we don't know.

In ny comments when | said a couple days ago these
are specul ations that we think based on the D avik M ne
and the other one is the Raglan M ne, but they don't
know about that here because it hasn't -- it hasn't
been seen. W haven't had the experience yet.

But all those stats and infornmation they're
providing are only specul ations. Wat | do knowis --
what | do know is about the caribou, is as soon as they
see sonething in the distance, they are already alert,
and they already know what is there, any novenents.

So | do agree with the hunters and trappers that
this kind of object, windmlIl, wind farmthat goes in
our area, it wll affect the caribou. But, like |
said, we don't know how they're going to react because
it has never been proven in reality in this area
because it's close to the calving ground, and these
cal ving ground, year after year, the caribou know where

the calving ground is. So | do agree with the hunters
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and trappers. Masi.

THE CHAI R Kangi gl inig Hunters and
Trappers Organi zati on, Noel Kal udj ak.

MR. KALUDJAK: Thank you, Madam Chair. Noe
Kal udj ak, Hunters and Trappers Organi zati on.

Thank you very nuch for your response. M
col | eague, Roger Pil akapsi, wll ask a couple
questions. Thank you.

THE CHAl R Roger Pil akapsi .

MR. Pl LAKAPSI : Thank you. Roger Pilakapsi,
Ranki n HTO -- Kangiglinigq Hunters and Trappers
Organi zat i on.

As a hunter -- well, actually | have a few videos,
but I won't be showi ng them Wwen | was out fishing --
and they knew | was there, and when | went to go neet
them where they -- where they were going through -- and
they were behind the hill, and they already sense ne
that | was already there, and they took a different
route right away. |'mpretty sure it's going to affect
quite a bit with the wwndml|l that goes -- that will be

goi ng on around here, especially when it's close to the

mne -- the mning canp.
My solution would be the -- close by Rankin here,
and how this year's -- there's no -- there's probably a

few around the area, but not always. This way we can

all work together and see -- see what's happeni ng
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around the stuff that goes around with the wndmll,
and |"mpretty sure it made a sure big difference what
route they take about the windmll.

But -- but the thing is, like, when | was out
hunting, those caribou notice ne right away. | was in
the area. Even though | wasn't show ng, just by the
sound of it, and, like, | could see themfroma
di stance, and |I'mpretty sure it's going to make a big
di fference what -- when we have -- when we have
windm ||l up here by the canp.

The other -- the other one is -- like, ny question
Is: Sonme years it's pretty hard to get fuel. Like,
when you're at Rankin -- nore than one comunity ran
out of fuel. That was fromthe ship on different
timng and everything. | guess you' ve got to go to
ot her communities and stuff. There was a | ot of

vehi cles that weren't running because we ran out of

fuel. Wuld it -- like, I"'mpretty sure it will be the
same as Agnico for the fuel -- getting fuel supply.

And if they have -- mss that one year, everything runs
on fuel, and we would -- they would have a wi ndm ||

that would still generate electricity.

But I'"mpretty sure you can find a solution
where -- at | east where the caribou goes, and, |ike,
it's -- everything what -- what's happeni ng around the
canp now, it's pretty big, big, very big. W never
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used to see -- we could see from-- right fromtown
now. That's how nuch difference it nmake.

But | -- but we have to work together for the
whol e roundt abl e and everybody that's trying to support
what the hunters and -- the organi zation up here are
trying to do, but that's -- that was ny question.
Thank you.

THE CHAI R Roger, can you pl ease repeat
your questi on.

MR. Pl LAKAPSI : Yeah. This -- this -- with
the wwndmll, it would make a big difference. Like |
said, one tine Rankin ran out of fuel, gas, and that

was the only community ran out of gas so that if the

Agnico mss it one year, there will be shortage of
fuel, and everything runs on fuel. This -- if they put
up the wind -- wind farm they still would have power

because it doesn't run on fuel, and |'mpretty sure the
roundt abl e can work together and -- find a solution and
wor k together. Thank you.

THE CHAI R So, just to clarify, that's a
comment, not a question? O were you asking soneone
specifically?

MR. Pl LAKAPSI : That was ny comment and ny
suggestion what the windm ||l would do --

THE CHAI R Ckay.

MR Pl LAKAPSI : -- wWith the wi nd.
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THE CHAI R So no nore questions fromthe
Kangi gl i nig Hunters and Trappers O gani zation?
MR. KALUDJAK: Noel Kal udjak, Kangigliniq
Hunters and Trappers Organi zation. Those are our
questions and comments. Thank you.
THE CHAI R | didn't hear a clear
question. | heard a comment in the -- from Roger's
statenment, so I'mgoing to nove on to the Athabasca
Denesul i ne Ne Ne Land Corporation, D ane MDonald. Any
guestions?
MR. Bl GEYE: Madam Chair, | would like to
apol ogi ze for Diane not being with us this norning due
to her problem M nane is David Bi geye, Denesuline Ne
Ne Land Corporation. No question.
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Manon Turnel.
M5. TURMEL: Good norni ng, Manon Turnel ,
Agni co Eagle. W just have one quick question. Thank
you.
THE CHAI R Brad Arnstrong.
Agni co Eagle Mnes Limted Questions Sayisi Dene First
Nati on and Northl ands Denesuline First Nation
MR. ARMSTRONG Thank you, Madam Chair. Brad
Arnmstrong, |egal counsel for Agnico Eagle.

This question is for M. Chranowski. W do thank
you for going through in your presentation the concerns

and how Agni co Eagle has attenpted to respond to the
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concerns. You nmake sone reconmmendati ons about cari bou
protection neasures, and we just wanted to confirm--
and | think you'll agree, M. Chranowski, so the Board
understands that -- that you have not been invol ved,
think, on the ground with respect to nonitoring the
cari bou on the site or -- or seeing how the caribou
protection neasures are working on the site. | think
that's correct. You haven't had personal experience in
that matter.

Thank you, Madam Chair.
THE CHAI R Sayi si Dene and Nort hl ands
Denesuline First Nation. Dan Chranowski ?
MR. CHRANOWEKI : Thank you, Madam Chair

And thank you for the question, and the sinple
answer is, no, | have not been on the site to be
i nvolved with the caribou protection neasures.
THE CHAI R: Agni co Eagl e, Brad Arnstrong.
M5. TURMEL: Manon Turnel, Agnico Eagl e.

Thank you for your response. Thank you for your
presentation. That's all the questions we had.
THE CHAI R Nl RB staff, Tara Arko.
Nunavut | npact Review Board Staff Questions Sayisi Dene
First Nation and Northlands Denesuline First Nation
M5. ARKO Thank you, Madam Chair. Tara
Ar ko, Nunavut | npact Review Board staff.

Two very quick questions. In the sanme thing as
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we' ve been asking the other groups, can you comment on
whet her the terrestrial advisory group is essentially

working? |Is it able to achieve the goals for which it
was recomended?

Thank you, Madam Chair.

THE CHAI R Sayi si Dene First Nation,
Geof f Bussidor. Dan Chranowski .
MR. CHRANOWSKI : Thank you, Madam Chair.

And thank you for the question. The terrestrial
advi sory group is just that, an advisory group and not
a deci sion-nmaking group. W believe it's not the
proper avenue to answer inportant issues, including
matters that nmay potentially have adverse inpacts to
aboriginal and treaty rights and/or environnental and
soci oeconom ¢ i npacts.

Was there anything else in that question that I

m ssed?
THE CHAI R Nl RB staff, Tara Arko.
M5. ARKO Thank you, Madam Chair.

| believe that's enough information. A second
qui ck question: Do either of your groups have an
I npact benefit agreenent with Agnico Eagle?
MR. BUSSI DOR: Good norning, CGeoff Bussidor,
Sayi si Dene First Nation.

The answer to that question is no. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Was that for both Sayisi Dene
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and Nort hl ands Dene? Geoff Bussi dor.

MR. BUSSI DOR: Yes. Thank you.
THE CHAI R NIl RB staff, Tara Arko.
M5. ARKO Thank you, Madam Chair. Tara

Arko, Nunavut | npact Review Board staff. That's al
the staff questions at this point.
THE CHAI R Any questions fromthe Board?
Guy Alikut.
Nunavut | npact Revi ew Board Panel Questions Sayisi Dene
First Nation and Northlands Denesuline First Nation
MR. ALl KUT: Thank you, Chair. CGuy Alikut,
NI RB board nenber

Thank you, Bussidor. |In 1980, that's when | saw
them and nowit's 2023 and | see them again, and we're
still dealing with caribou. I1'mglad that we're
wor ki ng toget her.

These caribou, there's no map around here that's
bi g enough to show where the cari bou go, but what does
Mani t oba governnent do to nonitor -- nonitor the

caribou mgration? That's the question | wanted to

ask, and |I'Il ask another question after. Thank you.
THE CHAI R: (NO ENGLI SH FEED) cari bou
managenent and nonitoring in your -- in Manitoba? Are

you guys involved, or is that taken care of by the
provi nce? Sayisi Dene First Nation, Geoff Bussidor.

MR. BUSSI DOR: Back at the tinme Quy is
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referring to -- thank you for the question, and thank
you, Quy.

W were involved with aerial surveys and on-ground
cari bou surveys. Wy before the BQ board was even

formed, we were doing flyovers and nonitoring through

winter -- winter and springtine, but that was with
the -- when | used to work with the province back then.
Currently, I"'mnot sure if there is any surveys

bei ng done, but when the caribou do cone down into
Mani t oba and the road -- the winter roads are open,
that's when the provincial governnent nonitors nore
closely. They go up and down the roads, and then they
come by snow machines to the areas where the cari bou
are to -- because when the roads are open, big-gane
hunters, they get their tags, and then they go up north
and they bring their trailers and they canp out there
and then they go by snow machi ne and go out to where
the caribou are, and this is what's been going on for
t he past several years.

Q her than that, | don't know how -- how el se
they're actually nonitoring. They may be doing it by
helicopter, I'mnot sure, but | think the
Bever | y- Qanmani rj uag Managenent Board may have nore say
on the nonitoring of caribou in a different region.
Masi .

THE CHAI R NI RB board, Guy Alikut.
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MR. ALl KUT: Thank you, Madam Chair. Cuy
Al'i kut, N RB board nenber.
Do you know the population in your region as to --

can you give us an estimate as to what the caribou

popul ation is? For those of us -- for those of us that
are -- that often go out caribou hunting, we don't even
get any information as to how many -- or what the

caribou population is, especially speaking to the
Beverl y- Qamani rj uaq cari bou herd. Can you give us a
rough estinmate?

THE CHAI R Sayi si Dene and Nort hl ands
Denesuline First Nation, Geoff Bussi dor.

MR. BUSSI DOR: |"msorry. W cannot provide
an information -- like, information on the current
nunmbers. W don't know. The BQ board woul d have t hat

i nformation, so, no, we don't have that information.

Thank you.

THE CHAI R NI RB, Guy Alikut, N RB board
menber .

MR ALI KUT: Thank you. That's all the

questions | have. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Any nore questions fromthe
Board? | have a questi on.

Nunavut | npact Revi ew Board Chair Questions Sayisi Dene
First Nation and Northlands Denesuline First Nation

THE CHAI R During your presentation, |'m

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




878

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

not sure what the slide nunber is, but it was in the
recommendati ons section. Wen you were providing the
recommendati ons in your presentation, you had nentioned
that you recomrend -- if you could clarify if I
under st ood what you neant that you' re recomrendi ng that
seasonal -- that there should be seasonal date --

dat es, shutdowns, based -- rather than the current

noni toring nmeasures that are in place.

Based on the presentations early last week, it was
presented that there's usually coll aboration between
Agnico Eagle, the Kivalliqg Inuit Association, and
Kangi gl inig Hunters and Trappers Organi zati on where
they col l aborate to decide on when to shut down the
road based on the status of caribou within the project
area, and can you clarify if you' re recomrendi ng t hat
this is inadequate and insufficient and shoul d be done
usi ng negoti ated seasonal shutdown dates rather than
active nonitoring on the road? I'mtrying to
understand if that's what your recommendation is.

Sayi si Dene and Nort hl ands Denesuline, Dan
Chr anowski .

MR, CHRANOWEKI : Yes. Thank you, Madam Chair,
for the request for clarification.

Yes, it is inportant to coll aborate and di scuss
the effectiveness of ground observations. Certainly it

plays a part in all -- a key -- quite an inportant part
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in all of the assessnents of using the caribou
protecti on measures.

My suggestion is that, that there are other
met hods as well that could also be effective or even
enhanced the way cari bou protection neasures are put in
pl ace, and the seasonal date shutdown that has been
suggested is another nmethod that can be used where
knowl edge of when caribou turn up at certain tines in
the year and when they | eave could be a w ndow where
there could be -- it would cause the mne to shut down
so that in that period of tine there would -- would be,
in my mnd, greater protection to reduce disturbance.
Thank you.
THE CHAI R Thank you for that
clarification, and thank you for your responses. Thank
you for your presentation.

Now we' Il turn to the presentation of the
At habasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land Corporation. David
Bi geye.

| wll ask that our |egal counsel swear or affirm
t he next group of presenters and mark the exhibits so

that we can begin with presentations. N RB |egal

counsel .

Ch, sorry. Before we -- | just realized what tine
it is. W'Ill take a 15-m nute break.
( ADJ OURNMENT)
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Procedural Matters by Nunavut | npact Revi ew Board Legal
Counsel
THE CHAI R Wl cone back, everyone.

Nl RB | egal counsel.
M5. NMEADOWS: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Teresa Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut | npact
Revi ew Boar d.

If I can have the next panel of w tnesses state
and spell your nane for the record, please.
MR. Bl GEYE: Davi d Bi geye, Athabasca
Denesul i ne Corporation. DA V-1-DB-I-GE-Y-E
M5. RASMUSSEN: Good nor ni ng.
Kati e Rasnmussen, consultant for the Athabasca Dene Ne
Ne Land Corporation. K-A-T-1-ERA-SMUSS-EN
MR. MERCREDI : Loui e Mercredi, Athabasca
Dene. L-OUI-EMERGREDI.
MR. LABAN: Good norning. My nanme is
Janmes Laban. |I'mwth the Athabasca Denesuline

First Nation. J-1-MMY L-A-B-A-N

M5. NMEADOWS: Thank you -- oh, sorry. M
apol ogi es.
V5. DENECHEZHE: El i zabeth Mary Denechezhe with

At habasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land Corporation.
E-L-1-Z-A-B-E-T-H MAARY DEENEGHEZ-HE

DAVI D Bl GEYE, LOUI E MERCREDI, Sworn

ELI ZABETH MARY DENECHEZHE, KATI E RASMUSSEN, Affirned
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MS. MEADOWS: Thank you. Teresa Meadows,
| egal counsel for the Nunavut | npact Revi ew Board.

So, Madam Chair, | have two hard copies of the
Power Poi nt presentation about to be presented by the
At habasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land Corporation, and those
are nmy procedural matters.

EXH BIT 42 - Hard Copy Power Poi nt

Presentati on, Athabasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land

Corporation Techni cal Session Presentation

for the NIRB Public Hearing for Agnico Eagle

M nes’ Meli adi ne Extension Project Proposal,

(English/Inuktitut)

Presentati on by At habasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land

Cor porati on (Athabasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land

Cor poration Technical Session Presentation for the N RB
Public Hearing for Agnico Eagle M nes’ Meli adine

Ext ensi on Proj ect Proposal)

THE CHAI R Davi d Bi geye.
MR. Bl GEYE: Thank you, Madam Chair.

First of all, |I would like to thank each and every
one of participants around the table. [1'd like to

I ntroduce where we cone from W are known as a
nomadi ¢ people, as caribou followers in tine
imenorial. | nyself was raised in a tundra around
Ennadai Lake and Kasba, Snowbird, Woldaia. | have a

great experience in hunting and trapping that was
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taught onto ne by ny dad. Caribou is the nost

i nportant part of our lives since we were known as
nomadi ¢ people. | have seen and experienced the
caribou mgrating through -- through northern
Saskat chewan and Northwest Territories.

Today, ny heart is hurting fromwhat's happeni ng
around Rankin regarding mning industry and what is
proposed to us. It doesn't matter what culture we cone
from but we are all |and keepers. W are the voice
for the animals. And water is life. Wthout water,
we'll never survive. That's why we're here. The |and
and the caribou connect us here today.

The At habasca Denesul i ne Land Corporation
represents the three Athabasca First Nation: Fond du
Lac, Black Lake, Wl laston. Qur community are in
nort hern Saskatchewan -- and our land's called
"Nuhenene" in our Denesuline | anguage -- includes
portion of southwest Nunavut and sout heast Nort hwest
Territories.

Qur communities have lived with the Qamanirjuaq
caribou herd for thousands of years. W are caribou
peopl e, nomadic. The caribou conme to our |ands during
the winter and return here in the spring and sunmer.
We are grateful to be here this week with people from
across the range of the great novenent of the cari bou.

We are all connected by this caribou and | and and
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com ng together to have these conversation, and share
our know edge and experiences is inportant.

M5. RASMUSSEN: Sorry for the interruption.
Kati e Rasmussen.

We had a transl ated version, so we're just
connecting if it's too late to put that one up. And
appreciation to the NIRB because we did give the
transl ated version just |ast week, so
MR. Bl GEYE: Being here, visit -- sorry
about that. Being here, visiting the mne site, and
listening to all of the information fromthe community
and El ders, we renenber that we nust speak for the
cari bou and for our future generations. The mne is
| ooki ng at extending their lifetine for 11 nore years.
We think about -- many years ahead to how any inpacts
to caribou today and the future may inpact our future
generation and their ability to continue our way of
life as Denesuline people.

Qur communities are fundanental ly interconnected
with the Qamanirjuaq caribou. W rely on these caribou
for our food, clothing, for our -- our cultural, for
our physical and spiritual health, and to continue our
way of life. Any inpacts that may contribute to the
ongoi ng popul ati on decline of the herd will have an
I npact on our people.

W were deeply troubled to see a m ne devel oped so
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cl ose to where caribou are calving and in the route of
i nportant post-cal ving novenent corridors and
freshwater crossing. |In our Denesuline know edge, we
are taught that freshwater crossing, the post-calving
grounds, and the cal ving grounds are sacred pl aces that
nmust be respected and not disturbed. These are

| ocati ons where cari bou are known to be the nost

vul ner abl e.

In the collar novenent animtion, we can see that
one inportant crossing has already |ikely been inpacted
by this devel opnent. And we are concerned about
| ong-terminpacts to novenent to cal ving and
post-cal ving cari bou. Athabasca Denesuline conmunities
have al ready experienced | oss due to the declining
Bat hurst, the herd fromthe west, and Beverly cari bou
herds -- herd fromthe north.

The Qamanirjuaq herd is the last and only herd
that the Athabasca Denesul i ne peopl e can depend on. W
must ensure that the precautionary approach is used
when consi dering devel opnents that may inpact the
caribou. In an interview with one Athabasca Denesuli ne
nmenber about this project, he said: (as read)

The western herd and the northern herds are

gone. They don't conme to our territories

anynore. |f the eastern herd goes, | don't

know what woul d happen. [|f the caribou
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di sappear, we have a hard tine surviving. W

need to protect the east cari bou.

MS. RASMUSSEN: Thank you, David. 1'll talk a
bit about our specific comments and recomendati ons
now. GCh, Katie Rasnussen.

The At habasca Denesuline has stood strongly to
prevent devel opnments in critical habitat where cari bou
are calving and post-calving and at this tinme do not
have enough informati on about how the cunul ative
I npacts of an extension of the life of the mne may
I npact caribou and, in turn, the Athabasca Denesuline
peopl e.

Qur next slides will speak about -- are three
specific areas: the shifting, calving, and
post-cal ving grounds; the |ocation of the proposed w nd
turbines; and the At habasca Denesuline request to join
the terrestrial advisory group.

We have seen fromthe evidence presented in
techni cal docunments submtted as part of this process
and heard fromlocal |and users during this hearing
that the calving and post-cal ving grounds have been
shifting and have greater overlap wth the regional
study area and the mne site infrastructure for the
post-calving. In a neno released by Agnico Eagle on
August 18th of this year, their analysis shows that

overl ap between calving and the regional study area has
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gone from O percent when the project was first approved
to 2.6 percent now.

We have al so heard fromlocal harvesters
observations of caribou calving at the north end of
Mel i adi ne Lake, and the caribou collar data from 2023
fromthe Government of Nunavut agreed with those
observations. The original 2014 and updated 2022 fi nal
envi ronnment al inpact statenment from Agnico Eagle did
not acknow edge or address the inpacts of this new and
I nportant overlap. W now have a baseline condition
where nore caribou are interacting with the mne and
regi onal study area and at a nore vul nerable tine. Yet
no new adaptations or planning have taken place to
address this inportant change. The cal ving grounds are
both culturally and ecologically significant, and this
I mportant change, we believe, needs to be addressed
bef ore any new extensions are approved.

We had four recomendations to address this. As
Denesul i ne know edge teaches us that the cal ving
grounds are places where the caribou should not be
di sturbed, and there is general consensus that cari bou
are nost vul nerable on the cal ving grounds and | eavi ng
the cal ving grounds, specifically we need to have a
better understanding of howthe mne is currently
I npacting cari bou novenent. W' ve heard a | ot about

this already about Commtnent 38. There is potenti al
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for hei ghtened avoi dance, vulnerability, and distance
that needs to be considered in determ ning appropriate
thresholds and triggers with the new information of the
overlap with the cal ving grounds.

When we net here for a technical neeting at the
end of June of this year and At habasca Dene nenbers saw
the maps show ng the novenent of the cal ving caribou
from Agni co Eagl e's Browni an Bridge anal ysis, Athabasca
Denesul i ne requested a neeting of Elders from al
potentially inpacted conmmunities to discuss this
I nportant change and provi de gui dance on how to nove
forward. W also nade this request in our witten
subm ssi on.

Seeki ng gui dance fromElders is fundanental to
under st andi ng how t o approach the overlap of the
cal ving grounds with the regional study area and, from
the view of the Athabasca Denesuline, is a necessary
first step to begin charting a path forward. W do
have an update and would Ilike to thank Agnico Eagle for
reaching out to us yesterday to start discussions about
havi ng At habasca Denesuline Elders neet with Elders
fromthe Kivalliqg region; however, at this tine we
still do not have that gui dance we need.

Qur final two reconmendations on cari bou
protections are to nane the cal ving grounds as a

st and- al one val ued ecosystem conponent and that a
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specific protocol be developed to trigger hei ghtened
cari bou protections when the calving grounds are
overlapping with the project area. Nam ng the cal ving
grounds as a val ued ecosystem conponent woul d ensure
that as they shift and overlap potentially nore with
the mne site in the future that inportant change is
bei ng nonitored proactively and proactively

communi cated to potentially affected communiti es.

W would Iike to note that there is precedence in
Nunavut for developing a calving -- a calving caribou
protection plan. The Back River gold mne in the
Kiti knmeot region has a plan in place in the event that
cal ving grounds of the Bathurst or Beverly, Ahiak
cari bou herds should shift into their regional study
area. This plan ensures that they are nonitoring the
shifting cal ving grounds, that they comunicate with
potentially inpacted parties and nmanagenent authorities
if the calving grounds are noving close within the
regi onal study area, and has planned operationa
shutdowns for if the calving grounds do overlap. W
believe that sonmething |ike that nmay be needed here,
but we have not nade specific reconmendations at this
time as we are waiting for guidance from El ders.

W' ve al ready heard a | ot about w nd turbines at
this hearing. There is great uncertainty about how the

Qamani rjuag herd may respond to wind turbines. Wile
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we appreciate the efforts of Agnico Eagle to develop a
managenent plan in response to reviewers' concerns for
cari bou, Athabasca Denesuline do not have confi dence
that the mtigation proposed will be sufficient.

Denesul i ne know edge teaches us that caribou are
very sensitive to new visual disturbances, sounds, and
vi brations. Also that caribou see, hear, and perceive
things in ways that humans do not understand. So
studi es seeking to understand how cari bou may hear,
feel, or perceive the wind turbines still contain a
great deal of uncertainty. And there are no neasures
that can address the visual disturbance of the turbines
t hensel ves.

G ven the inportance of this habitat and the fact
that caribou are currently calving at the north end of
Mel i adi ne Lake in close proximty to the proposed
| ocation of the wind turbines, this is not the |ocation
to experinment with sonmething so uncertain.

At this tinme, Athabasca Denesuline do not support
the wind turbines in the proposed |location. And |'l]
read a quote fromone of -- a nenber of Athabasca
Denesuline during an interview about this project:

(as read)

When you are in the barren | ands, you can see

for a long ways. Even a small tree is

visible fromfar away. These wi nd turbines
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w Il be huge on this |andscape. The cari bou

are sensitive to that. They sense things

that humans can't. They have sensory

abilities beyond what we do.

Qur final comment and recommendation is about the
terrestrial advisory group. W have heard a | ot about
this group and its inportance as part of devel oping,
noni tori ng, managenent, and adaptation for caribou
protection neasures as well as for including indigenous
perspectives, know edge, and experience. It is also an
I nportant venue for collaboration and sharing of

know edge.

The caribou travel from Chesterfield Inlet to the
trees of northern Saskat chewan and Nuhenene, the | ands
of the Athabasca Denesuline people. Having
representatives fromall potentially inpacted regions

not only to provide input but also to share and |isten,

to -- to learn fromeach other is an inportant part of
ensuring an ongoi ng di al ogue that will influence better
cari bou protection. In order to ensure that the

At habasca Denesuline can take part in this inportant
group, we are requesting that the Term and
Condition 132 is updated to include the Athabasca
Denesul i ne.

So in our conclusion we want to clarify the

At habasca Denesul i ne position. The Athabasca
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Denesul i ne stress the inportance of supporting the

| ocal Inuit in making decisions about your |ands and at
this tinme have serious concerns about inpacts --
potential inpacts to caribou. W do not have enough
information to understand how an extension of the life
of this mne, particularly in the context of the

cal ving grounds overlapping wth the regional study
area and uncertainty about future overlap, potentially
even nore overlap with the calving grounds. This

I mportant change has not been addressed, and -- and we
believe strongly that it needs to be before any
approvals are given. |If the project is approved, we
have recomended a nunber of actions to inprove caribou
protections, inportant -- nost inportantly an El ders’
neeting and the creation of a calving ground -- calving
cari bou protection plan.

Due to great uncertainty and relying on Denesuline
knowl edge of cari bou behavi our, we do not support the
wi nd turbines at the proposed |ocation. And finally we
request that Term and Condition 132 be updated to
I ncl ude At habasca Denesul i ne.

MR. Bl GEYE: (as read)

| remenber one wi nter when the caribou did

not conme into our area. They stayed further

east. The forest was so quiet. Wen the

caribou didn't cone, the other aninmals don't
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cone either. |It's so quiet. There is no
life in a tundra without the caribou and in
the forest. | know what it feels |ike when
the caribou don't conme. And I don't want

t hat experience again, and | don't want that
experience for ny grandchildren in the future
generation or their children. |If something

happens on the cal ving grounds, our entire

way of |ife will be inpacted, and our people

wll suffer.
There was a -- a |lot of concern regarding the turbine.
I want to -- | want to bring up one thing based on ny

experience. A rem nder to our neighbours, Ilnuit. |
have greatly respect for you settling here. Long
before the nodern ways of changes, we had connection in
our ancestors. W visit each other. W help each
other with food, clothing. | know that for a fact
because | seen that with nmy eyes, and ny great
grandf at her taught us. W are always told, The land is
our life. The water is our life. W got to protect
what we believe in. W can never be blind by noney.
Money is beautiful. Cones and goes. But the |osses of
our ancestors is not replaceable. But the know edge
and what was brought up to us by their teachings. W
are the Elders now. The one that pass their know edge

are gone. They all remain in our hearts. And we --
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when we | ook into the tundra, you see their way of
life. And when | say "the way of life", I'"'mpretty
sure you understand what | nean. That's the |ife of
animal and the water. That's our tradition.

In the old ways when there was no anmunition or
gun exi sted when we hunt, we had spears and arrows. |t
was so difficult to hunt. Qur ancestors -- if there's
tracks of caribou, a pathway, our ancestors used to
line up markers, elzen in our |anguage. And the
mar kers are cut trees right on the line where the
cari bou's passing. They line it up towards where they
are going to sit for them cone in close to them

You know, that -- that way of life today still
exi sts 'cause when | go hunting, | see caribou
crossing, and | start a fire, and | put those trees
there. As soon as the caribou cones up to it, it
follows the tree along to a |location where I'mwaiting
for them

These turbine are 152 netres. |If you do
cal cul ations, 500 feet up in the air. During our tour,
we are told it's the width -- the height of the bl ade
Is the height of the arena, Agnico arena. And one
blade is two tines the length of that. And the first
turbine that was established was in China. Sane
hei ght, sanme project. | Googled it; | studied it. But

based on that information, it gives ne a broad i dea how
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the structure's going to | ook.

When | cone to think about those markers, those
are just little trees laying down, and caribou never
cross that. Imagine 11 of these around Meliadi ne. |
don't know what's going to happen, but through the
know edge, | think there'll be great inpact of the
cari bou, especially the sound too. They're so
sensitive.

Just -- | cone to think about it, | don't know
what else to think but to feel sorrow. W need to
rem nd ourselves what is the best possibility to work
toget her, not agai nst each other. Scientific evidence
is not always accurate, but knowl edge fromthe |and, we
know what we're tal king about. And we got to cone up
with a solution at the end of the day how we can better
ourselves to work. Thank you.

THE CHAI R: Thank you to the Athabasca
Denesul i ne Ne Ne Land Corporation for your
present ati on.

Now to questions fromthe intervenors. Any
qguestions? Nunavut Tunngavi k | ncorporated, Gabriel
Ni rl ungayuk.

MR, NI RLUNGAYUK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Gabriel N rlungayuk.
| want to thank the Athabasca Denesuline com ng up

here to Rankin Inlet and explain what they're -- we're
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seeing. They -- it really puts into perspective our --
the inportance of caribou. Here in Nunavut, the

Qamani rjuaq herd, as we all know, is very inportant

for -- to providing calving so that our future
generations will continue to enjoy the caribou, and we
share the caribou with our nei ghbours down south. It's
not just us. W -- we know that. Like the Elder from
hunters and trappers said, W -- we need to take care
of the caribou. W have been told that there are other
peopl e that depend on the caribou. So | really

appreci ate the explanation that -- we better understand
It now Qujannamik. No questions.

THE CHAI R Kivalliqg Inuit Association,
Lui s Manzo.

MR, MANZC Thank you, Madam Chair.

Luis Manzo, Kivalliqg Inuit Association.

Thank you for that inportant information from
Saskat chewan Dene. No questions at this tinme, Madam
Chair.

THE CHAl R Gover nment of Nunavut,
Dani el Haney.

MR, HANEY: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Dani el Haney, Governnent of Nunavut.

Thank you, Athabasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land
Corporation, for your presentation. W |look forward to

working with you in the terrestrial advisory group.
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Thank you.
THE CHAI R: Gover nment of Canada
departnents, Spencer Dewar. Nothing?

Kangi glinig Hunters and Trappers O gani zati on,
Noel Kal udj ak.

MR. KALUDJAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Noel Kal udjak, Kangiqgliniqg Hunters and Trappers
Or gani zat i on.

Thank you for your presentation. Very
informative. | apologize on behalf of Kangiqgliniq HTGO
Hunters and Trappers Organi zation, as our secretary has
just started, and we don't have very nuch paperwork
com ng through, very slowy.

And | have sonething to say. Thank you for your
report. Very -- information -- very good informtion,
and it strengthened ny explanation and -- and what |
have been saying all week. Caribou have very good
vision. On the land -- when we travel on the |and and
when we cone across a crossing area where the cari bou

cross the waters |like the narrows that you tal k about,

along -- along the way, on little hills, we see these
little rocks put on top of boulders, little rocks.
Hardly noticeable. And they're all lined up along this
little hill where the caribou cross. Little rocks.

Not -- not nuch bigger than nmy cap. Al lined up.

Anci ent markers. They divert the caribou to where they
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have their kayak. The caribou sees those little rocks
all lined up, and it diverts the caribou crossing
towards where the hunters await so they'll have a
better chance with their bow and arrows, their spears,
and their kayak.

That is solid information. Wen | hear the
report, one of the Elders say they -- they build a fire
when the caribou are crossing. The caribou are very,
very sensitive visually, by sound, and by snell and
feel.

| can imagine -- | do not have proof, but al ong
the narrows there m ght have been sone of those little
i nukshuks that were placed |long, |ong ago. That used
to be a major crossing area for caribou and for the
peopl e that hunted them during those tines because they
did not have rifles. And those were the inportant
areas to catch their annual caribou for clothing and
food and tool s.

Qur nonitor along the all -- all-winter road,

Nat han Kal udj ak, works for HTO, and he nonitors the
road fromRankin Inlet to the mne and the area. W do
have the reports at our office, but due to our
secretary just starting a few days ago, we do not have
them in hand.

But | ask, Did you see any caribou crossing the

narrows during the mgration in 2023? He said no.
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Maybe one or two. That was about it. The caribou did
not cross the narrows around the m ning canp area.
They diverted east -- west past Meliadi ne Lake to where

the new expansion area is between Itirlak and Meli adi ne

Lake. | w Il have another comrent after the presenters
have sonething to say about what | just said. Thank
you.

THE CHAI R At habasca Denesul i ne Land

Cor poration, David Bigeye.
MR. Bl GEYE: Davi d Bi geye, Athabasca

Denesul i ne Cor porati on.

Thank you, Noel. The crossing -- it's not a
question but a coment. But I'lIl relate that to the
comrent .

Sacred crossing, nmy son -- sacred crossing, you're

not supposed to | eave any markers or cut a tree.

That's where our ancestors, which are the cari bou,
they' |l never leave that crossing if it's not

di sturbed. That's what -- were the words that was
brought to nme by ny dad. Wen we cone to crossing, ne
and ny dad, we used to go there in a canoe with a spear
to try and preserve the anmpb. And now when we nake a
little shelter to disguise ourselves, we used to bring
trees, sit there, and the caribou would cone up. To
nme, that know edge of teaching is not to disturb the

crossing or put nmarkers because they'll spot it a |ong
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ways.

In ternms of the windm |l at that |ocation, as Noel
stated that the caribou use their nostrils for scents
and also to block the glare of brightness 'cause they
have ni ght vision eyes, better eyes than us, UV,
meani ng that they can spot a very bright [ight froma
| ong di st ance.

And when | think about the turbine, it reflects
back to the markers that we're tal king about and with
the sound. And due to transportation safety
regulation, | assune that it has to have lights. One
of themhas to be red, | think, and the other one is
white. In cloudy days, you can see that for mles on a
tundra. Wth the sight of a caribou, | ampretty sure
it can be sensed far away.

Thank you, Noel.

THE CHAI R: It's getting close to the

| unch break, and like Leo Mmalik said, he lost his
brot her a few days ago, and he's going to be |eaving
the -- he's going to be leaving. W are hoping that --
that, you know, that he would be able to join us for
the community roundtable, but it |ooks |ike he m ght

| eave before the technical sessions are over.

And he does have questions and conments, so we're
going to pause the intervenors asking questions and

maki ng coments for now and get Leo Mmalik to ask his
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guestions and share his thoughts 'cause he is going to
be travel | i ng today.

Leo M m alik.

Questions by Coormunity Representatives for Chesterfield
I nl et (Roundt abl e)
MR MM ALIK: Thank you, Ms. Chair.

These First Nations people have gone through the
sanme situation as us. For exanple, Arviat, Wale Cove
haven't really been touched, or -- | really understand
what the Dene are saying. W are in agreenent with
what you are saying. | want this to be understood.
have to go hone. | do have question. | wonder if
there is -- you can ask questions to them

There's a -- an area where we set nets. W heard
that they are pouring salty -- salty water out into the
sea. And why is that? | wonder if people from Cl RNAC
can answer ne or if any of the governnent departnents
can answer ne with that question that | just raised.
THE CHAI R He' s aski ng about (NO ENGLI SH
FEED) water or oil or spill where they put out nets
near Chesterfield Inlet. Maybe Fisheries and Cceans
Canada or Transport Canada.

Crown- | ndi genous Rel ati ons and Northern Affairs
Canada and Northern Affairs Canada, Spencer Dewar.

MR DEWAR: Quj annam i k, Madam Chai r.

Spencer Dewar, Crown-I|ndi genous Rel ati ons and Northern
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Affairs Canada.

Thank you for the question. Wen it conmes to the
di scharge of ballast water, we'd |ike to defer that
guestion to Transport Canada.

Wen it cones to the -- the discharge to the
marine environnent, | think we'd like to refer that
qguestion to Environnent Canada and Cimate Change.

THE CHAI R Envi ronnment and d i nmate Change
Canada, Victoria Shore.

MR, DEWAR Quj annam i k, Madam Chair.
Spencer Dewar, Crown-Indi genous Rel ati ons and Northern
Affairs Canada.

Wth your permssion, we'd |ike to defer the

portion to Transport Canada first.

THE CHAI R Transport Canada,

Adam Downi ng.

MR. DOWNI NG Thank you, Madam Chair
Transport Canada, Adam Downi ng speaki ng.

"' mnot sure | caught the exact question through
translation. Wuld you be able to restate it?

THE CHAI R Leo Mmalik, can you re --
re-ask your question.
MR MM ALI K Thank you, Madam Chair.

Where is this discharge of ballast water --

where -- where is it being dunped? Is it the mning

conpany or another conpany that's di scharging ball ast
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water out into the sea near our community? | wonder --
I have not heard as to which conpany is discharging
bal | ast water out into the ocean. 1'd |ike sone

i nformati on, please.

THE CHAI R Transport Canada,

Adam Downi ng.

MR. DOWNI NG Thank you, Madam Chair.

Adam Downi ng with Transport Canada.

So when we refer to ballast water being dunped in
the sea, this is water that's retained by the ships and
the ship vessels, and it's -- it's used to bal ance the
shi ps when they're out on the water. And so when
referring to ballast water, it's the release and -- and
capture of that water to bal ance the ship.

As for the ballast water regul ations, we do have
strict regul ations on what can be captured and
rel eased. These new regul ations canme into effect by
the mnister of transport on June 23rd, 2021. And so
these regul ati ons strengthen existing rules for vessels
on international voyages and the introduction of new
rul es for Canadi an vessels that don't voyage
internationally. And so on ballast water, | hope that
answers your questi on.

As for the discharge fromthe m ning conpanies,
Transport Canada's role in the discharge and the

di scharge of the pipeline in -- in -- inthe Itivia
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Har bour was sinply approving the structure, and -- and
we don't have any inp -- or -- inplications on the

water or the -- what's being discharged. Thank you.

THE CHAI R: Leo M m alik.
MR MM ALIK Thank you, Madam Chair.
| don't think that any of our -- the people in our

communi ty have heard about the di scharge of ball ast
water. W -- we have no idea where the ballast water
Is -- why it's being discharged into our ocean near our
communi ty of Chesterfield Inlet. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Do you have any other further
guestions?

MR M MALIK | have anot her question. |
have a question to Transport Canada and to the m ning
conpany, Agnico Eagle, about Inuit Qaujimjatugangit.

| want a precise answer.

Qur community of Chesterfield Inlet, ever since
mning started, we are |osing the whale population in
our -- in our -- in the vicinity of our community. |
woul d Ii ke to ask this question to Transport Canada and
for Inuit Qaujimajatugangit know edge holders. |'m not

the only one concerned about the whal e popul ati on on

the decline. | think it's due to the way -- the ships
comng in. There's alot of -- there's -- there's an
I ncrease of ships that are com ng through our -- our

community. There's ships that are carrying supplies to
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Mel i adine -- | nmean Meadowbank, and so | need to get
some answers. | think we are one of the nost inpacted
comunities by these supply ships comng into our --
our -- our harbour. Thank you.

THE CHAI R First, we'll go to Fisheries
and Cceans Canada and then Agnico Eagle.

Fi sheries and Oceans Canada, Jose Audet-Lecouffe.
VR.  AUDET- LECOUFFE: Thank you, Madam Chair. Jose
Audet - Lecouffe, Fisheries and Cceans Canada.

I'"d like to -- I'd like to thank Leo for -- for
hi s question. Thank you.

| would like to nention that we have -- Fisheries
and Oceans Canada has recommended to the Board to
vary -- to vary or add two terns and conditions, one
related to the introduction of aquatic invasive
speci es.

Aguati c invasive species can be introduced to the
mari ne environnment through ballast water. Fisheries
and Cceans would like to include nonitoring of those
species to make sure the neasures in place are worKking.

Second, Fisheries and Oceans Canada has
recommended addi ng and varying terns and conditions to
add nonitoring of shipping noise for the protection of
whal es. There's new -- new scientific evidence that
show that there's a great inpact from shi ps on whal es,

and that could cause behavi our change and
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di spl acenent s.

So thank you for your question. | think this is
one aspect of this project that was not di scussed nuch,
but it does affect sone conmunities. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Manon Turnel.

Puj j ut Kusugak.

MR.  KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Puj j ut Kusugak, Agnico Eagle.

The -- we net with Transport Canada. W had a
nmeeti ng about the transportation corridor, and they net
over in Chesterfield Inlet at one point, and as well as
the community were at the neeting. W had di scussed as
to where the transportation corridor should be routed
and rerout ed.

For the topic that we're di scussing now, the
nunber of ships will not change. And we net with --
and we haven't heard fromthe Kangiqliniq HTO about
the -- the topic of -- the popul ati on of whal es being
on the decline. | think we're going to ook into this
sone nore. We're going to check to see about the
transportation corridor to see what can be done. W
need nore information. We have a wildlife officer as
well or a biologist. W want to share from your
comunity. W're going to keep that open to your
hunters and trappers organi zation, and we're going to

neet with themto -- to discuss how we can maybe --
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maybe hel p. Thank you.
THE CHAI R: Leo M malik.
MR MM ALI K Thank you, Madam Chair.

Thank you very nuch for that clarification and for
that answer. Ever since mning began, we are noticing
that every sumer we are not seeing as many whal es.

The ships are comng in from-- from Chesterfield
Inlet, and then they go through our conmunity and by
Whal e Cove, and they anchor down by Marble Island. So
t hank you for that clarification, Pujjut.

Kangi gl inig Hunters and Trappers Organi zati on Questions
At habasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land Corporation

THE CHAI R Continuing with intervenor
guestions and comments before the |unch break.

Kangi glinig Hunters and Trappers O gani zation,

Noel Kal udj ak.

MR. KALUDJAK: Thank you. Thank you, Madam
Chair. Noel Kaludjak, hunters and trappers

or gani zat i on.

Thank you, Leo Mmalik, for your cornments. And
thank you for the replies. Those are very informative.

On to the caribou sensitivity. W already talked
about how sensitive caribou are to hearing, seeing, and
smelling. My last question to the presenters is the
snell of the caribou is very, very sensitive. The

caribou foll ow each other by snelling the | eaders’
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hooves. Between the hooves, there is a -- a gland that
drips to the land during their -- their walk, their
m gration, and the caribou follow that by snell.

Al'l week | have been tal ki ng about the water and
contam nation -- possible contam nation of the
Mel i adi ne Lake. Wen the caribou cone into contact
with -- on -- at the narrows on the water, they can
snell the water. Agnico Eagle clainmed at one point
that the ice mght be diverting the caribou to a
di fferent crossing.

| reiterate that the caribou can also snell the
contam nated water. In turn, it does not want to get
in the water and cross the normal, ancient crossing at
t he narrows.

One, it's the sight of the mne and the
possibility of the wind turbines diverting their
mgration route. Second is the hearing. They can hear
the runmbling of equipnment at the mne, and the w nd
turbines will not help at all. Three, they snell.

They can snell the air -- contamnated air fromthe
m ne, contam nated waters.

My col |l eague here -- he left -- sorry --

Nat hani el Kaludjak. | talked to himfor a bit, and he
confirmed nmy know edge that the caribou will rest right
where the mills -- wind turbines are planned to be

installed. That area is al so where they rest during
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their long mgration.

So ny question is to the presenters, Athabascan --
At habascan Dene. Are these true what we say? They are
| ong knowl edge of our ancestors and for our future and
are very inportant. Thank you. And ny final questions
and comments.

THE CHAI R Before we go to a response
fromthe Athabasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land Corporation,
we're going to take a lunch break, and we'll reconvene
at 1:15 and continue with questions.

( PROCEEDI NGS ADJOURNED UNTIL 1:15 PM

( PROCEEDI NGS RECOMVENCED AT 1:14 PM

THE CHAI R Vel come back, everyone.
Continuing where we |left off before the break, a
response fromthe Athabasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land
Corporation. Louie Mercredi.

MR. MERCREDI : Thank you, Madam Chair. Louie
Mercredi, Fond Du Lac First Nations.

First of all, 1'd |ike to acknowl edge the El der
that did the opening prayer this norning. [1'd also
like to thank the community of Rankin Inlet for
allowng us here in this community, taking part in this
hearing. 1'd also |like to acknow edge the El ders that
we have sitting at the table here. The Elders bring a
| ot of knowl edge to the table. There's a lot of things

that our Elders and the | ocal Elders can work together
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and sit on at a few days of neeting sessions. There
will be a lot of knowl edge exchanged.

"Il give alittle background on nyself. | was
born and raised in Fond Du Lac. W -- as Fond Du Lac
and At habasca basin comunities, we grew up with
i ndustry. The uraniumindustry has been in our
traditional territory for many years. There's a |ot of
destruction fromit. There's good social economc
benefits that cone fromit, but at the sane tine our
way of life is inpacted by it, our water quality. W
have i npacts on both ends of our |ake, which is ashore
Lake At habasca. W have inpacts upstream which is the
mning -- urani um nnes.

Downstream fromus into Al berta, there i s another
big i npact at that end of the |ake, which is com ng
fromthe devel opnent of tar sands. Qur way of life has
been inpacted for nany years. Qur peopl e diagnhosed
with cancer, the rate is increasing over the years.

Qur people are slowy dying off with cancer. The
cancer rate is increasing, and the age is getting
younger .

So these are serious thoughts that we face with
I ndustry. W are not here to oppose to the current
operation, but we can work together, dialogue together,
make things a little better understanding. W bring a

| ot of knowl edge to the -- to the conmunity here with
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m ni ng i ndustry.

| nyself worked at the mnes for 13 years. | went
through three different mnes froma manual operation
to today's technol ogy operation. Either/or, manual or
aut omat ed, the destruction still happens.

As we all know, our know edge as First Nation and
Inuit people of northern Canada, we've been here living
with caribou since tine immenorial. W know the
changes. W know the inpacts. W do not rely on
western science. Wstern science has just been
recently discovered; our know edge has been around for
tens of thousands of years.

And, yes, | also have a cabin on the tree line in
the Northwest Territories called Rennie Lake. |
trapped there for 17 consecutive years. During ny
harvesting, |'ve encountered Inuit there at one tine
about ten years back, and then again back in 2020, |
nmet a group of harvesters fromthis area just east of
Renni e Lake. There was six of them There we all net.
We had a good visit, and |left, and, you know, we had a
little gift exchange. | got a pair of polar bear mtts
fromthem and it was good. You know, it was good
seei ng people, and we tal ked.

And when | cane here | ast week, ny buddy
Jonathan -- | forget. | don't know how to pronounce

his | ast nane here, but he wal ked up to ne here. He
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said, Louie. | kind of |ooked at them Jonathan, he
said. That neant a |lot to ne seeing someone again that
' ve seen during harvesting.

|'ve seen sone changes during ny tine trapping in
the barren | ands. Changes include environnent al
changes, caribou behavi ours, nusk ox behavi ours, seeing
herds of nmusk ox nunbering from 20 to 50 at different
tinmes. You see the nusk ox mgrating into the trees.
They never cone back out. They never return back to
the barrens. W currently have nusk ox in the
Saskat chewan boreal forests, so we know there's inpacts
up there. Sonething is chasing them away.

Prior to developnent in the gold -- in the di anond
mnds there in Davik area, we used to get Beverly and
Bat hurst caribou prior to devel opnent every year.

These two herds used to cone winter range wthin our
ar ea.

After the start of the devel opnent, popul ations
had decreased. The caribou stopped comng to our area.
There are three -- three different herds that we relied
on, and Qamanirjuaq is one of themas well.

Back in the day, Qamanirjuaq used to cone to our
region a little later than the Bathurst and the
Beverly. They used to cone, say, January fromthe
east, but, nowadays, they cone right at freeze-up.

So with that being said, the herds, Beverly and
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Qamani rjuaq -- Bathurst, | tal ked about this nunerous
tinmes. |I'ma former chief as well froma comunity.
We know there's tens of thousands of stake and flags on
the barren tundra that are not picked up after it's
been used. That holds up our caribou fromreaching
their destination, flagging, exploration flagging.

When we -- |'ve seen nunerous copies of printouts
fromcaribou mgration collars over the years, the
cari bou who start heading south. Once it reaches --
it's a fast novenent. Wthin a week they cover a | ot
of distance, but once you get to the D avik area, they
just stop there, hang around there and go in circles,
and they are vulnerable to predators.

And back to the Qamanirjuaq herd now. Yes, |
strongly believe there is inpacts on the caribou.
There will be inpact on the caribou herd with the
devel opnment of the wind turbines. Wy |I say that?
There was a power grid that's been strung across
nort hern Saskatchewan fromthe m ddl e of Lake Athabasca
called Charlot R ver, strung right across the north
right into Rabbit Lake Mne area and tied into the rest
of the province now.

Prior to that, in 1986, that's when -- that's when
they brought it in. Prior to 1986, the caribou used to
go further south for winter range. As a kid grow ng

up, | renenber the caribou used to mgrate back from
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the south in the springtine. A |lot of people used to
go out harvesting. The stories that we gather from our
parents and our ancestors -- our Elders -- sorry --
they said the caribou used to go as far as Cree Lake
back in the 1950s, winter range there. That's right in
central Saskatchewan. That's a |ong way.

After the power |ine had been put in, that
m gration south has stopped. The caribou has not
crossed that power source, the power |lines. Nowthe
Wi nter range has changed. It's north of the calving --
the power |ines now.

Then cones forest fires. Forest fires also cause
a lot of winter range habitat loss. |If this turbine
devel opnent is not relocated to a different area, there
will be major inpacts to the caribou herd. W're not
opposed to the devel opnent; we just need to find a
suitable location for it so it does not affect the
caribou mgration.

And al so the water discharge Iine that's in
construction right now, the caribou wll never cross
that water line as well. Every kilonetre or so there's
a booster punp there. Wat that booster punp station
does is nmaintaining a certain pressure of the water
that's bei ng di scharged, one punp after another
t hroughout the whole length of the power line. It's

going to create vibration. It's going to create noise
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and potential spills. W seen mgjor spills with water
di scharge lines in the past.

The water quality, wthout water, there's no life.
W need to have our water. One of the Elders had
i ndicated there -- the foaming in the base never used
to be there prior to a devel opnent. One thing can
cause that is chlorine or sodium a high concentration
of it. 1've worked in water treatnment plants as well,
and we al so need to understand what other things
contained in the water that's being discharged. W're
dealing with gold extraction here. There's borax.
There is cyanide. Cyanide is areally, really
poi sonous chenical, and we al so need to know what pH
| evel s are sent back to the environnent.

And cari bou wat er crossings, Agnico Eagle's

presentation indicated the caribou wll not cross when
there's ice. | really strongly disagree with that.
|'ve seen caribou cross ice or noice. |If they need to
cross, they'll cross regardless if there is ice or not.

And the sacred crossing areas, if you see caribou
crossing, if you're on the opposite side, as soon as
t hey sense you, they will not hesitate. They'll just
turn right back where they started swwnmmng from
They' Il never reach the other side of the -- where the
danger is. They're going to be rel axed once they

approach the water, a little cautious, but they know if
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it's safe, they'll go. As soon as they sense danger,
they're com ng back out the sane way they got in. And
when they do cone out, it's a big stanpede. They're
going to run.

These are the know edge that we have as First

Nation Inuit people. W don't rely on western science.

These are the true facts of our people. It's who we
are. Wth that, I'll leave it at that. Thank you.
THE CHAl R Kangi gl inig Hunters and

Trappers Organi zati on, Noel Kal udjak.

MR. KALUDJAK: Thank you, Madam Speaker .
Noel Kal udjak, Kangiqglinig Hunters and Trappers

Or gani zat i on.

Thank you very nuch for your comments. Yes, we
agree with you a hundred percent on the sensitivity of
the caribou and their mgration routes.

Agai n, we concur that the caribou are very
sensitive to noise, to snell, and sight, and we still
stand to our word that once you have obstacles in their
way, they will take a different route, and it is very
inmportant to their health and to our health as hunmans,
as lnuit and | ocal people who use the caribou for their
l'ivelihood. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Sayi si Dene First Nation.
Nort hl ands Denesuline First Nation and Sayisi Dene,
Geof f Bussi dor.
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MR BUSSI DOR: Masi, At habasca Denesul i ne.
(DENE SPOKEN - NO ENGLI SH TRANSLATI ON)

THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Manon Turnel.

M5. TURMEL: Thank you, Madam Chair. Manon

Turnmel, Agnico Eagle.

Thank you for your presentation. | would just
like to nention that in the June workshop that we had,
it was agreed by all parties that at the next
terrestrial advisory group neeting, there would be a
vote on At habasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land Corporation
presents as part of the terrestrial advisory group. |
just wanted to nention that it's part of the agenda of
t he next neeting.

| also want to nention in regards to sone previous
coments that as part of the Ml iadi ne extension
application, we have conpl eted human heal th and
ecol ogi cal risk assessnent, so basically | ooking at
risks for health and the environnent, and it concl uded
that there was no potential cancer risks, and it was
reviewed by the Governnent of Nunavut and Heal th
Canada.

And one last thing just to say that cyanide is
destroyed. So there's no cyanide on-site, just to
clarify. | have no -- no further questions. Thank you
again for your presentation.

THE CHAI R NI RB staff, Tara Arko.
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Nunavut | npact Review Board Staff Questions Athabasca
Denesul i ne Ne Ne Land Corporation
MS. ARKO Thank you, Madam Chair. Tara
Arko, Nunavut | npact Review Board staff.

One qui ck question: Does the Athabasca Denesuli ne
Ne Ne Land Corporation have an inpact benefit agreenent
wi th Agni co Eagl e?

Thank you, Madam Chair.

THE CHAI R At habasca Denesul i ne, David
Bi geye.
VR. Bl GEYE: At habasca Denesul i ne Land

Cor poration, David Bi geye.
Si npl e question, no.
THE CHAI R NIl RB staff, Tara Arko.
M5. ARKO Thank you, Madam Chair. Tara
Arko, Nunavut | npact Review Board staff. No nore
questions fromstaff at this tine.
THE CHAI R Any questions fromthe Board?
| have one question simlar to Guy's question to
the Sayi si Dene and Northl ands Dene.
Nunavut | npact Review Board Chair Questions At habasca
Denesul i ne Ne Ne Land Corporation
THE CHAI R Do the Athabasca Denesuline Ne
Ne Land Corporation, are they involved in any other
cari bou managenent and nonitoring prograns in your

regi on besides the Beverly and Qananirjuaq cari bou
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managenent board, and are there any reports publicly
avai |l able? Katie McDonald -- Katie Rasnussen.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Thank you, Madam Chair. Katie
Rasmussen. My nomis |ast nane is actually MDonal d, so
t hat wor ks too.

Yes, the Athabasca Denesuline are involved with
the Bat hurst cari bou advisory conmttee. So that's a
comm ttee that works with quite a | arge group of both
publ i c governnments, indigenous organizations, both
First Nations and Inuit, and there are public reports
avai |l able. The Bat hurst cari bou nmanagenent plan and
range plan were both created with significant input
fromthe group.

The group al so does a yearly annual review, and |
think that's publicly avail abl e.

The other work that the Athabasca Denesuline is
i nvolved with, we do a ot of caribou work within the
three communities, so harvest survey. W're in the
process of devel oping a conmunity-driven caribou
rel ati onship plan, which could also be called a
stewardshi p plan. Athabasca Dene comunities used to
do health studies in collaboration with harvesters, and
we are in the process of seeking funding and
col | aboration to start that again.

And | think the only other one I'll nention is

that the -- the Athabasca Denesuline Ne Ne Land
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Corporation has a sister organi zation that works nore
on the south of 60 work, so that group is called the
Ya' Thi Ne Ne Lands and Resources, and they also do a

| ot of caribou work. So we collaborate with them at
times as well. Thank you.

THE CHAI R: Thank you for your responses,
and thank you for your presentation.

As | indicated on Saturday, in the interest of
time, Agnico Eagle is going to address Item 11 in their
closing remarks, and Item 12, the outstanding
procedural nmatters and deferred questions is going to
be deferred until tonorrow night or Wdnesday nor ni ng.
So, for now, that concludes the technical sessions of
this public hearing.

Comuni ty Roundt abl e

THE CHAI R W will now begin the
comuni ty roundtabl e portion of the public hearing.

The community roundtable is focused on hearing fromthe
desi gnated community representatives who have cone to
Rankin Inlet to hear about the Meliadi ne extension
proposal and to share their know edge, views,

guestions, and concerns and issues with the Board about
t he proposal.

In addition to the questions and comments from
comunity representatives here at the table, we wl|

al so continue to invite questions fromthe public in
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Ranki n I nlet.

For menbers of the public who want to ask
guestions to the proponent or intervenors, please
provi de your name to the NIRB staff at the table -- at
the sign-in table as you enter the room and they wll
|l et me know that you would like to speak, and |I'l| add
your nane to the |ist.

W will do our best to hear from everyone who
wants to speak, but please be patient wwth us as we
wor k t hrough our speaking order.

I f you don't have questions but would like to
provide a statenent for the Board's consideration,
pl ease al so speak with our staff. There are many ways
to share your know edge and perspective wth the Board,
and our staff will assist you in making sure that
happens.

W will now proceed with the community roundtable
Agenda Item 1, a summary presentation by the proponent.
Foll owi ng the presentation from Agnico Eagle, community
representatives fromthe Kivalliq, Mnitoba, and
Saskat chewan, followed by nmenbers of the general public
here in the hall wll have an opportunity to question
Agni co Eagl e and any of the registered intervenors who
we heard fromduring the technical session.

If you're not sure who to direct your questions

and conments to, | may direct your question to the
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I ntervenors who may be able to provide you with
answers.

| also want to rem nd the conmunity
representatives that tonorrow at the close of the
communi ty roundtabl e session, a single spokesperson
chosen by each comunity will have an opportunity to
provi de short closing remarks sumrarizing if their
communi ty's concerns have been addressed and if the
conmunity supports the proposal going ahead or not.

Pl ease take sone tine today to choose your spokesperson
and talk with them about your thoughts for the cl osing
remar ks

| wll ask that our |egal counsel mark the
exhibits so that we can begin with the presentation.

Nl RB | egal counsel.

Procedural Matters By Nunavut |npact Review Board Legal
Counsel

M5. MEADOWS: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Teresa Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut | npact
Revi ew Boar d.

Madam Chair, there is no one el se that needs to be
sworn in or affirmed, so I'"mjust going to mark the
Power Poi nt presentation in hard copy about to be
presented by Agnico Eagle as the next exhibit in this
public hearing, and those are ny procedural nmatters,

Madam Chair.
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EXH BIT 43 - Hard Copy Power Poi nt
Presentation, "Meliadine Extension -
Communi ty Roundt abl e” (English/Inuktitut)
EXH BIT 44 - Hard Copy Power Poi nt
Presentation, “Meliadine Extension -
Communi ty Roundt abl e” (Dene)
THE CHAI R Agnico Eagle. Wwo is going to

gi ve the presentation?

M5. TURMEL: Manon Turnel, Agnico Eagl e.
Pujjut Kusugak will be |eading the presentation. Thank
you.

THE CHAI R Puj j ut Kusugak.

Presentation by Agnico Eagle Mnes Limted (Meliadine
Ext ensi on Communi ty Roundt abl e)
MR. KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

My nane is Pujjut Kusugak with Agnico Eagle. | am
fromRankin Inlet. | amwth Kritterdlik and Sophie
Lacour se.

| will be doing the presentation in English, and |
would like to thank the -- and the translators as we
can speak in English. They speak -- they speak
I nuktitut better than | do, so | will speak in English,
but perhaps | mght just speak in ny | anguage so | just
want you to know ahead of tine.

And to everyone here of the people visiting from

ot her places, welcone. And welconme to the indigenous
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peopl es and to the other people from outside of

Rankin Inlet -- there are many of you -- and the Elders
that are here with us, you continue to teach us all the
time about our culture and our way of |ife so that it
could continue into the future, the Nunavut I npact
Revi ew Board that are holding this hearing here, and to

all the people fromthe Kivalliqg communities and as

they -- to provide comments and inputs to us.
Before | begin, | think it's obvious |I am | nuk
first of all. | grewup in Rankin Inlet. | was born

in Arviat, and I amal so from Nunavut, our | and.

What we will talk about, we want you to know t hey
have been conpiled, and we incorporated |nuit
Qauj i maj atugangit, traditional know edge, and we al so
I ncorporated western science, and we tried to create a
bal ance and what they -- and what it states regarding
cari bou, the water, and our | and.

David will speak regardi ng the El der advisory
commttee and how they are involved. Also, we
represent lnuit as well, and there are many Inuit that
are working that have work to do, that they are able to
provide for their famlies because of their enploynent.

And to the businesses in Kivalliqg, they are able
to get opportunities at the mne. 2011 and '12, | was
the mayor of Rankin Inlet when Agnico was here and just

prior to the time they built the mne. They would ask
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us if we support the mne. W said -- we said that the
land is our gift, but if our Inuit will benefit from
it, we want the Inuit to have enploynent and to gain

i ncone, so we -- we sacrificed the land so that the
people in Rankin Inlet will benefit.

And let's not forget that Rankin Inlet and the
Kivallig will continue to grow and devel op, and we w ||
continue to build roads, and that is what we want. W
have requested the road to -- roads to be built by the
Governnment of Nunavut and Canada, and many |nuit know
that we cannot go back. W cannot return to the life
of our ancestors. W want to continue living and not
| ose our | anguage, not |ose our lnuit identity and our
culture and way of |ife, but we have to nove forward
because the world -- we cannot be |left behind by the
wor | d.

David and I and Alex as well are fromKitikmneot.
He's Inuk like us. W work for the man because we want
to assist fellow Ilnuit and to informand how it can
benefit your conmunities.

This I will speak in English now | just want the
interpreters to be aware.

The focus of this presentation will be to review
what the Meliadi ne extension is, including a
description of the differences conpared to what was

approved in 2015 and presenting and nonitoring that is
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in place. W wll also discuss how we have engaged
with conmunity nenbers and organi zations. Lastly, we
wi Il present where we stand regardi ng the questions and
recommendat i ons nade by intervenors as part of the
Nunavut | npact Revi ew Board process.

When we first proposed the Meliadine Mne, we
studied how it could affect Nunavut's environnent and
communi ties and how it could also benefit the region.
We al so studied the different ways we coul d nmanage and
reduce the mne's inpacts. W summarized those studies
in the final environnmental inpact statenent, which we
submtted to the Nunavut | npact Review Board in 2014.
Nunavut | npact Revi ew Board recommended that the
m ni ster approve the Meliadine Mne, which the mnister
did in 2015.

Agni co Eagl e made anmendnents to the fina
environnmental inpact statenent in 2018 and 2020 for the
di scharge of treated water to Itivia Harbour, and these
amendnents were approved by NIRB in 2019 and 2022.

Agni co Eagle provided this final environnental
I npact statenent addendumto outline what the proposed
Mel i adi ne extension includes and what its benefits and
potential inpacts are. It also outlines consultation
wi th conmmunities and how we plan to nonitor and
mtigate the project's effects, and the final addendum

is intended to guide NIRB's review of the proposed
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Mel 1 adi ne ext ensi on.

And Meliadine Mne brings significant econonm c and
soci al benefits to the region. This includes
enpl oynent, education and training, comrunity prograns,
and nore.

The 2014 final environnmental inpact statenent
assessed and included the potential for five deposits
or mning areas including the deposits called
Tirigani aq, Punp, F Zone, Wesneg, and Di scovery. These
deposits are shown in yellow on this map, which is from
the 2014 FEI S project description. The approval
approach in the project certificate was descri bed as a
mul ti - phase approach, and this neans not all of the
deposits or mning areas woul d be devel oped at once.
However, the inpacts associated with all of the
deposits and associ ated i nfrastructure have been
evaluated. Tiriganiaqg was the only mning area to
i ncl ude under ground m ni ng.

This map al so shows us the |ocation and size of
the area where the rock that doesn't contain gold is
stored and presented and approved by the Nunavut | npact
Revi ew Board in 2015, and this is shown in orange. And
in the 2015 application to the Nunavut Water Board,
Agni co Eagl e i ncluded underground and open-pit m ning
of the Tiriganiaqg deposit and associ at ed

i nfrastructure, which includes a process plant, canp,
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tailings storage facility, and waste rock storage
facilities. It was also planned that the other mning
areas were going to be included in the Nunavut Water
Board's permt at a |ater stage, which is what we are
doi ng now.

The proposed Meliadi ne extension is not a new
project, and, in fact, nost of the Meliadi ne extension
was al ready assessed in 2014 and approved in 2015.
Those parts have just not been built yet.

The bi ggest changes we propose that have been of
interest to the community include the new wi nd farm and
the extension of |ife of the mne and econom c benefits
until 2043. Overall, the mine site would be only
slightly larger to account for the wind farm and the
areas where the rock that doesn't contain gold is
stored and will be smaller than originally anticipated.

The area where the rock fromwhich the gold has
been extracted wll be stored and al so be smaller than
antici pated back in 2014. And, just to nmake clear,
with the Meliadi ne extension, there will be no
intensification of activities. And we heard this many
times during the week, so we wanted to nmake sure that
we address this point.

Qur power plant is currently running on diesel
fuel, just like every other community in Nunavut and

simlar to other mnes in the arctic, but we would I|ike
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to reduce our reliance on diesel fuel by using w nd
energy. Qur proposed wind farmincludes up to

11 turbines. The wind turbines would be built as
needed and not all at once. W are |ooking at three to
five turbines that would be erected in the first phase,
and these are turbines circled in green on the slide.

Al ternative scenarios to power generation have
been eval uated, and these include nuclear, solar power,
hydro power, and power grid connections, but these are
not considered feasible at this tine.

There have been 6,000 turbines installed in Canada
since 1993. There are currently four turbines
operating at the Diavik Mne in NW, and two turbines
operating at the Raglan M ne, and they are | ooking to
install nore.

| would like to highlight a few key facts
foll owi ng questions and concerns we heard during the
consultation activities. The tip of each wi nd turbine
bl ade woul d be about 144 netres. In conparison,
approximately two w nd turbines would fit horizontally
on WIllianson |lake. And if you're not famliar with
WIllianson Lake, it's the lake right in the mddle of
town. So two could fit on there. The turbines can be
shut down very quickly and in a matter of m nutes
shoul d weat her or caribou warrant it.

It is expected that 1 kilonmetre away fromthe
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turbines you will hear nore of the natural environnent
t han the noi se generated by the turbines, and the
turbines will be connected to our power -- power plant
through electric cable installed al ong the access
roads, and the cable wll be laid directly over the
ground surface. The proposal includes the installation
of batteries between the turbines and the power plant,
and the battery basically | ooks |Iike a sea-can.

The batteries wll allow storage of a bit of
energy but also help while transitioning fromusage of
di esel at the power plant and usage of the turbines.

For conparison, one wind turbine at full capacity can
provi de enough el ectrical power for all of Rankin in
the winter.

The selection of the wind turbine |ocations
presented in black on this map was the result of years
of field investigation and studies and wi nd resources
maps. This is where the wind -- to know where the w nd
cones fromand where to go to maxi m ze where the w nd
I's caught, also with archeol ogi cal resources, cabin
| ocations, caribou mgration corridors, raptor nests,
and vegetati on.

Through engagenent activities and |1 Q shared, Inuit
Qauj i maj atugangit, we al so heard that community nenbers
prefer that we keep the area of |and disturbance for

our activities to a m ni num
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A nunber of alternatives provided by sone of the
communi ty menbers, |ocal organizations, and intervenors
has al so been | ooked at, and these are areas identified
on the map to the -- to the left here you see yell ow
and then the green polygons, and we al so | ooked at
positioning the turbines within the footprint of the
mne site, and this is between waste rock piles on top
of the waste rock piles, so various places around
site -- around the Meliadine site, and our mne site is
currently very conpact to reduce inpact on the | and,
and that just neans we're putting buildings as cl ose as
possi bl e together to nmake sure that we're not taking up
so much. So this neans there's very limted roomin
between infrastructures at site.

So the Subblu area, as shown in the yell ow
pol ygon, was proposed by a nunber of intervenors, and
this area is located near the airport and is a
restricted buffer zone defined by the airport needs,
and this has to be taken into consideration in addition
to the 500-netre buffer away frominfrastructure.

In addition to the airport buffer zone, a
500-nmetre clearance fromthe other infrastructures and
cabins is also required, and this limting -- so this
means that there's sone |limts to the area's
accessibility.

The follow ng additional discussions with the

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




931

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

Kangi gl i nig Hunters and Trappers O gani zati on and

i ntervenors during the June workshop regarding
constraints at the Subblu area were submtted, and the
green area in the above was al so proposed, and this is
behi nd Thonpson Island al ong the coast.

This area |located is at an inportant distance from
the mne site, adding significant cost, but
additionally there are a nunber of cabins close to this
area and its proximty, and we have heard froml oca
organi zations and intervenors they would prefer the
turbines be installed in town or close to the coast to
be nore protective of caribou.

Just for your reference, the blue area on this
map, there were over -- estimated over 150, 000 cari bou
that were seen mgrating through that proposed
| ocation. For reference, 11 wind turbines would take
up about three WIlianson Lakes. This is including
construction of the foundation pads and sol ar panels to
produce the sanme anount of energy, it would take up
four N pisar Lakes. |If you're not famliar with
Ni pi sar Lake, it's our water source, which is nuch
bi gger than WIIlianson Lake.

To further understand the effects that the w nd
farmcould have on wildlife, Agnico Eagle prepared a
visual simulation of wind turbines at the Meliadine

site, and here's a picture we took from about --
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bet ween about 4 and 5 kilonetres fromthe proposed
| ocation on the other side of Mliadine | ake, so there
are -- here it shows there is no turbines.

And in these pictures, just to let you know too
what's mssing fromthis visualization, is the tailings
storage facility, and this would be part of the
Mel i adi ne extension. The height of the tailings
storage w Il be about half of the turbine height, and
there's a display in the corner of what the tailings
storage facility will be conpared to the turbines.

Now, this next picture, if you can see, this is
with the turbines at the sanme di stance and the
di fference of how you can see the existing mne versus
what it would ook Iike wth the turbines.

Now, for reference, if you stand at the healing
facility, which is just about 500 netres down the road
fromhere, fromthe healing facility to Char River
Bridge, that's 5 kilonetres, for your reference.
That's how far this picture is.

Now, on the next slide, this one is approximately
6 kilometres, and this is without the turbines.

6 kilonetres, for your reference, if you stand outside
the healing facility here in Rankin, fromthe

healing -- healing facility, 6 kilonmetres is to First
Landi ng Lake's dock. That's how far it is. So this is

the picture of 6 kilometres out with the turbines.
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This next picture is from8 kilonetres out. This
iIs wthout the turbines. 8 kilonetres is fromthe
healing facility out to Iljiralik, and if you' re not
famliar with Iljiralik, it's at the territorial park,
which is also a historic site and where nany people
still get water from

And then 9 kilonetres out is fromthe healing
facility out to Sandy Lake where we -- many of us
| earned how to swimbut also where there is a picnic
site. So, for your reference, that's 9 kil onmetres out.

I f you have not done so yet, | woul d suggest
taking a ride out on the road to get famliar with how
far these places are that we're referencing: Char
Ri ver Bridge, the dock at First Landing Lake, ljiralik,
and Sandy Lake.

And the last one is fromal nost 13 kil onmetres out,
and this is fromthe Healing Centre all the way out to
the Elders' cabin. So if you're going for a drive and
you get to Sandy Lake, go a little further and you'll
see the Elders' cabin, and that's about how far it is.
So this first one is fromal nost 13 kilonetres out, and
the next picture shows with the turbines there.

So on to the next slide. The proposed Mel i adine
extension also includes a new portal to access the
Tiriganiag mning area and froma different |ocation

called "Tiriganiag-Wlf". The Meliadi ne extension al so
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I ncl udes other infrastructure to support this existing
portal. These changes woul d increase the life of the
m ne.

As an option for the future, Agnico Eagle proposes
to use less fresh water and restrict the overall site
footprint by storing tailings and waste rock in
exhausted pits, and exhausted pits are open-pit m nes
that are no |longer in use, so we would have to provide
nore detail to the Nunavut Water Board before we nove
forward with these options.

As part of this application, there are nmany things
that wll not change, and from what the Nunavut | npact
Revi ew Board approved in 2015, this includes caribou
protection neasures, the all-weather access road,
utilization of the power plant, |ay-down activities,
and shi pping activities.

W collected data on soils, on permafrost,
chem stry of the rock, noise, howwater is noving in
the area, what is the conposition of the water in the
| akes that are in the area and at Itivia Harbour.

We al so collected data on vegetation, wldlife
that lives on the land and in water, birds and where
they live, and also fish and other organisns that |ive
in the water. Finally, we collected data on Inuit
Qauj i maj at ugangi t, archaeol ogy, and soci oeconom cs.

Based on that infornation collected, we have
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devel oped 40 plans to nonitor and report on our

envi ronnmental performance. W woul d take corrective
action if any unusual or unforeseen environnental

i npacts occur, and this is what we nmean by "adaptive
managenent”. W nust follow the terns and conditions
outlined in the project certificate.

The wi nd farm nmanagenent plan was devel oped for
this application and revi sed based on comments nade by
i ntervenors, and it includes environnental and cari bou
protection and mtigation neasures that are intended to
address anticipated environnental conditions or events,
and that can occur during the wind farm construction
and operation phases. W have al so devel oped triggers
so that we can adjust our plans should things not go as
pl anned.

Agni co Eagle has a nonitoring plan called the
“"Terrestrial Environnment Managenent and Monitoring
Plan". Sone of you here know as TEMW. And this plan
I ncludes nonitoring and mtigation of birds,
vegetation, wldlife, and caribou, and the focus of
this slide is to present the work suspensi on protocol
Agni co Eagle inplenents at site, and sone of you may be
famliar with this.

To know where cari bou are, we conduct surveys of
the mne at site or road. W also rely on information

rel ayed by the Kivallig Inuit Association and
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Gover nnent of Nunavut or the Rankin Inlet Hunters and
Trappers Organi zation. |If there are nore than

50 caribou within 5 kilonetres of the mne site or nore
than 50 caribou seen within 100 netres of the road, we
shut the road and the mne down. No activity.

Thr oughout the process we work col |l aboratively
with the Kivalliqg Inuit Association, the Governnent of
Nunavut, and the hunters and trappers organi zati on, and
the feedback we heard fromthese parties in the | ast
years was positive, and we always build on | essons
| earned, and we're very appreciative of the successful
col | aborati on we've devel oped over the years, and
that's why it's so inportant for Agnico Eagle to be
able to work with organi zations like the Kivalliqg Inuit
Associ ation and the hunters and trappers organi zati on.
We are constantly |l earning from each ot her.

Thi s photo was taken by one of our installed
caneras in July of 2022 when the work suspension
protocol on the AWAR was inplenented. So this neans
there was no traffic allowed on the all-weather access
road. For those who have not had a chance to w tness
the caribou mgration as it passes through the road, we
woul d |i ke to show you a coupl e videos of this.

THE CHAI R NIl RB | egal counsel.
Procedural WMatter by Nunavut | npact Review Board Lega

Counsel (Roundtabl e)
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MS. MEADOWS: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Teresa Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut | npact
Revi ew Boar d.

It's just to advise the people on Zoomthat we are
actually running these on the conputer here but not on
the Zoom feed because of the delay that we have, and to
advi se people on the Zoom feed that these ani mations
are available on -- this video is available on the
NIlRB's public registry. So please seek that out if you
would like to | ook at them but we are not going to be
able to run themon the Zoomfield. Thank you, Madam
Chair.

Vi deo Pl ayed

MR,  KUSUGAK: As it has been stated a few
tinmes where it was said that there were no crossing at
the narrows at Meliadine, we have coll eagues that were
at the narrows witnessing the crossing on June 29,
2023, and June 30, 2023. W had 50 or nore caribou
crossing the narrows, and this neant shutdown of al
activities at site.

And any tinme there's a shutdown or any cari bou
that are wwthin the distance limts, all parties
i nvol ved with the caribou nonitoring, such as the
Gover nnment of Nunavut and the Rankin Inlet HTO they're
al ways i nforned and kept in contact up to three tines a

day.
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Now, this slide here, it presents the road and
m ne shutdowns in the past years. |In 2023 the
al | -weat her access road had been shut down for 24 days
to date. Eleven flights were reschedul ed, which neans
enpl oyees had to stay |longer than antici pated at site,
and | think all of us here can appreciate when a flight
is cancel | ed, especially from Rankin where you need to
connect anywhere. No planes neans no food or a way out
of the comunity, and we all know how stressful and
anxi ous we can get when we can't fly out, and this is
what happens to our enployees at site. And they
understand. They know it's part of the job, but that
doesn't nean they can't be anxious as well to get hone
to their famlies just like we all would like to do.

In May of 2022, the terrestrial advisory group for
Meliadine was initiated, and this group provides
techni cal oversi ght on managenent, mtigation, and
noni toring neasures related to the protection of
terrestrial wildlife and wildlife habitat based on
[nuit Qaujimaningit and I nuit Qaujimaj atuqgangit,
traditional comunity know edge and know edge from
western science perspectives. Since then five
addi ti onal neetings have been held, and various topics
have been di scussed. Progress has been nade on
multiple fronts, and we are | ooking forward to future

neet i ngs.
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As part of our nonitoring activities along the
road and mne site, we have also installed jars that
coll ect dust, and they are set up on 2-netre posts, and
the netal cone controls w nd speed around the jar, and
the spoke on top of the post keeps birds from | andi ng
init. After 30 days these jars are renoved and sent
to a laboratory for analysis, and we conpare the
results with what was predicted woul d happen. To
reduce generations of dust along the roads, we apply
dust suppressant, and we al so ask road users to limt
their speed.

Si nce construction of the mne, what we have seen
in ternms of dust is in line with what was predicted.
Agni co Eagl e has several nmanagenent and nonitoring
plans in place to nanage and nonitor potential effects
on water, and Meliadi ne Lake has been identified by
communi ty nmenbers as an inportant drinking source --
wat er drinking source inportant for fishing, and based
on that the inportance of clean water and health of
fish, such as | ake trout and char, has been enphasi zed
I n our nonitoring prograns, and nonitoring has shown
that the water is safe for humans and the environnent.

The aquatic effects nonitoring programis a
noni tori ng program desi gned to assess whet her
activities at the mne are causing changes in the

aquatic environnment, and this programwas designed in
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consultation with the comunity, regulators, and other
st akehol ders. It incorporates traditional know edge,

I nuit Qaujinmaj atugangit, and western science to assess
water quality and the health of Meliadi ne Lake.

Monitoring the freshwater environment at Meli adi ne
Lake includes water quality; phytoplankton, which is
al gae; benthic vertebrates that live in the sedinents
and provide fish their food, so these are things |ike
smal|l larvae that live in the sedinents at the bottom
of the lake; and small fish species, so three-spined
sti ckl ebacks and |l arge fish species, |ake trout.

Water quality is nonitored annually and nultiple
times during the year. Fish and benthic invertebrates
comunities respond nore slowy to changes in the
environnment and require | ess frequent nonitoring. So
both are nonitored on a three-year cycle.

The results of the studies conducted to date show
that the water is safe to drink, the fish are safe to
eat, and the lake is healthy for fish and ot her
organisnms. |If there were ever any concerns, Meliadine
woul d be shut down. |If there were any concerns,
organi zations like the Kivalliq Inuit Association or
t he Governnent of Nunavut woul d say sonething and so
would we. And the water at Meliadi ne Lake is not
contam nated, and the nonitoring that has been done

shows thi s.
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The earliest water sanples were collected to
under st and baseline conditions prior to devel opnent of
the mne. This data was used to support the 2014
Mel i adi ne final environnental inpact statenent and are
now used to eval uate how much water quality has changed
over tinme due to activities at the m ne and ot her
factors, which also includes clinate change.

Since 2015, water quality nonitoring in Mliadine
Lake has been conducted at |east four tines each year,
once in wnter, usually around April, and then nonthly,
July, August, Septenber when the lake is free of ice.

Sanples are collected close to the mne, which is
about 250 netres fromwhere the water is rel eased and
at |ocations near the outlet of Peter Lake, the outl et
at the Meliadine River, and a secluded bay in the
northern part of the |ake, and the water quality
results are summari zed in an annual report that is
revi ewed by the Nunavut Water Board to ensure Agnico
Eagle is neeting the conditions of the water |icence.
And in the map you can see the different places where
sanpl es are col |l ected.

And this slide is to show the water quality before
mning and the predicted results. The nonitoring
results show we are well bel ow predictions and
t hreshol ds determined to be safe for fish, wildlife,

and human health. To put into context, what our
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nmonitoring results has shown over the past years of

nmoni toring, things such as total dissolved solids,
which is a conposite paraneter that includes things --
maj or ions such as cal cium sodium nagnesium and
chloride, and the range is around 70 mlligrans per
litre, and this is 100 netres away fromthe diffuser in
Mel i adi ne Lake.

And, in conparison, natural spring water found in
a bottle, such as Eska and these other water that you
have on your table, is usually around 85 mlligrans per
litre, and this is very simlar to the edge of the
m xi ng zone. And at our reference station in Meliadine
Lake near the outlet where it flows to Meliadine River,
the total dissolved solids concentration were at
70 mlligrans per litre, which is simlar to the
basel i ne conditions, and is nore pure than nost bottled
wat er .

Agni co Eagl e has devel oped cormmittees to address
soci oeconom ¢ concerns, and there is an Inuit inpact
benefit agreenent in the socioeconom c nonitoring
conm ttee.

In these commttees, we discuss enpl oynent and
I nvestnents. Agnico Eagle and ot her agencies as well
as the Kivalliqg Inuit Association can nobilize to
address the barriers to the workforce. Based on

| essons | earned operating in Nunavut over a decade, we
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have recently | aunched a Sanaji ksanut program and this
new recruitnment approach will be nore inclusive with
better work opportunities available for all.

Al so, Agnico Eagle |launched a virtual neeting
room as shown on this slide, and this was to foster an
open, transparent, and respectful dial ogue with all
communities of interest and mtigate chall enges of
consul tation during the pandem c, which created many
barriers for us.

Agni co Eagl e conducted a social nedia and radio
canpaign to rai se awareness for the virtual neeting
room before it was |aunched in June 28 of 2021. The
comuni ty engagenent programfor the Ml iadine
extension final environnental inpact statenent
enconpassed over 30 engagenent activities, including
one-on-one neetings, coffee and chats, |ocal Elders
neeti ngs, focus groups, public consultations, and open
houses. Sone of those engagenent activities will be
provi ded when David does his part of the presentation.

l"mgoing to hand it over to David.

THE CHAI R: David Kritterdlik.
MR. KRI TTERDLI K: Thank you, Madam Chair.
First of all, we've net many tines within the

communities with us through Agnico Eagle. There are
many concerns that are raised often every tine we have

community i nput sessions and an event such as this at
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public hearings, and the concern is always about
caribou. This is -- caribou is the country food of
I ndi genous peopl e.

There is a commttee that's set up by two groups
t hat di scussed the caribou herd, the Beverly cari bou
managenent board here in -- which is established for
the coomunities of the Kivalliqg region.

So we neet with themwth Pujjut and Janice in
attendance. W are sonetines kind of the -- like, the
m ddl eman, and sonetinmes we do have sone di sagreenents

in sone cases, but we have to always think about our

peopl e, and they cone first. So that's -- that is --
i s okay.

First of all, I'd like to tell alittle bit about
nmyself. | was born and raised in Arviat. The first

mners that were here are when the north Rankin nicke
m ne was established. There are sone people that

wor ked for -- for that m ning conpany. So we're very
pl eased that ne and Pujjut are working for Agnico
Eagle, and we're -- so we work col | aboratively together
about what -- what we shoul d maybe make pl ans for

before we do presentations.

Yes. W need -- there's always a need to hire
nore people. If there's a -- we need the calving
grounds of the caribou to -- the caribou herd that

mgrate year after year, and one of the changes in
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their mgration pattern has changed, that the -- it is
obvi ous that the cal ving ground was cl oser, and the

m grating cari bou have been -- their mgration patterns
have been changi ng since the m ne was constructed.

And the other thing, those of us that -- Inuit
that work there for a mning conpany, they comunicate
with us, and they instruct us. They are happy to worKk.
They want to work with Inuit. W want to coll aborate
and involve the Inuit. This has been the goal and
focus of our agreed -- and fromthose that assert the
rights.

W have to coll aborate with the communities, and
those are the instructions that have been given to us.
And we collect Inuit know edge, traditional know edge,
and what Inuit know regardi ng m ning, and we want the
Inuit traditional know edge to be incorporated in the

m ni ng comnpani es.

W have many -- in this respect of Inuit val ues
and -- lnuit values and Inuit traditional know edge has
to be respected by all, not just the m ning conpanies.

We have created groups in the Kivalliq region, the
Kivalliq Elders, to consult with and to gat her
information fromlnuit and the traditional val ues of
Inuit. W gather information fromthem

But one thing that we have to -- we have been

cautioned, we Inuit, those of us that have asserted our
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| and, this |and does not belong to us. It also bel ongs
to the animals in the rivers, in the | akes. They own
the land too. W have to think about themfirst. |If
we're going to use the |and, we have to be aware that
we share this land. The land is also the hone of the
wildlife and the fish.

One of the things |I've been working on, | have
been working for five years now and have been
instructed to collaborate with communities and to
consult with people in the comunities.

One of the -- one of the -- one of our focus has
been the behaviour of wldlife and Inuit
Qauj i maj atugangit or Inuit traditional know edge
sonetines and regarding the wildlife. That is the
focus of my work and to consult with the conmunities
and report to the mning conpany or the governnent or
if there's any questions, yeah. |If there's questions
fromthe coommunities, | have to try and consult them

We have advisory committees now because those that
are know edge keeper, and we renenber when we were
negotiating the Nunavut Land Caim and sone of us, we
work -- we were there negotiating the |and claim but
now we are just catching up, and Inuit are getting --
are catching up and learning still. Were is the
docunent? Wiere is the witten docunents? Inuit --

the Inuit would reply, W don't have a pen or a paper,

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




947

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

but we hold on to our traditional know edge. W have
not witten down our know edge of the |and, but the

| and we dwell in, the land -- the | andscapes, the

i nuksuit, they are our indicators. That's how they
used to reply.

They have nothing witten down, and we didn't have

a witing system because -- but we |earned fromthe

| and, and we -- the nuclear suit all have a neaning and
purpose, and that is how they wanted us -- this to
conti nue.

But the commttees we fornmed, and it is evident
the Elders in the communities, they -- they have nore
concern for the future generation and what rights the
future generation will have. Their children and their
grandchi l dren, how will they benefit? That is the
bi ggest concern El ders have.

In any communities, not just lnuit but other
I ndi genous people too, the concern for the future
generation and so that the future generation are
capabl e and strong because we cannot always live the
traditional way.

One of the things -- one of the neetings we have,
there is -- what can we do to approve or nake positive
I nprovenents? W have been told, and we have to be --
all the -- the education and the training required to

be qualified to work. You get your Gade 12 education
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or beyond. Inuit have always said, Al our lives we
are going to be learning, and it's lifelong | earning.
Even if we get older or becone Elders, we are still
| earning. Learning never ceases. Lifelong |earning --
we | earn sonething every day, and there is sonething
new every day.

That is all I'"'mgoing to share, and what | wll
be -- they were given to ne to present to you. |'m
going to read what was given to ne, and I will speak in
English, the prepared docunent.

In 2021, Agnico Eagle devel oped Kivalliq Elders
Advi sory Comm ttee conprised of 21 Elders from Baker
Lake, Chesterfield Inlet, Rankin Inlet, \Wale Cove, and
Arviat to identify. The main idea to create this group
of people, Elders, was to avoid not having to go to a
conputer for every information, that we need to get the
information locally, to get the know edge from | ocal,
not a conputer, because we have so nmuch in our own
m nd, and that was the nmain reason to create Kivalliq
El ders Advisory Comnmttee, to get the | ocal know edge
fromthe comunity.

The purpose of that is to identify, validate,
propose the various neans to how to integrate Inuit
Qauj i maj atugangit, traditional know edge, Inuit
soci etal value, comunity know edge into exploration,

pl anni ng, wor kforce, wellness, and operational plans.
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Sel ection of the conmttee nenbers was | ed by
Agni co Eagle's I Q coordinator through consultation with
the wldlife organizations and | ocal El ders.

In 2022, two neetings took place with Kivalliq
El ders Advisory Conmttee to discuss the Mliadine
extension topics included in the renoval of the
proposed airstrip fromthe project proposal and
additional information on the wind farmsuch as noise
| evel , positioning of the turbine, and alternative
resource that were eval uated.

Si nce Novenber 2021, Agnico Eagle has nmet with
cabin owners several tines to discuss topics such as
Mel i adi ne extension, cabin identifications on naps,
road to Discovery, information sharing, the water
managenent at the Meliadi ne M ne.

And on this slide, Kivalliq Elders commttee
nenbers have net a nunber of tines, and they have
advised that it would be very beneficial for the
Kivalliqg El ders Advisory Commttee and any Elders in
Kivalliqg to neet with other jurisdictions from
Mani t oba, northern Saskatchewan to do a joint neeting
and di scuss thenself what they have in mnd for the
future.

That is the end of ny presentation, but I'd |like
to advise that Kivalliq Elders Advisory Committee

chairperson is Harry Aggark. He's here, and he will be
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open to any discussions or questions, or he wll have
his own comments that he wants to nake. Thank you.
THE CHAI R Puj j ut Kusugak.

MR, KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Puj j ut Kusugak.

Thank you, David. During our nmeetings with the
Kivalliqg Inuit Association, discussions surrounding
water quality and the health of Meliadine Lake led to a
col | aborative idea of a site visit to Meliadine Mne,
and in May of 2023, Agnico Eagle arranged two visits to
the Meliadine Mne, and this was to explain how water
IS managed at site.

Participants included nenbers of the hunters and
trappers organi zation, nunicipal officials, Elders,
cabin owners, and the Kivalliqg Inuit Association, and
there were a total of 25 participants attend this
sessi on.

The purpose of the site visit was for Agnico Eagle
to provide further clarification on how water is
collected, howit is treated, howit is discharged and
nonitored at Meliadine, and also to answer any
out st andi ng questi ons or concerns.

In addition, water colour, tea colour were al so
observed and di scussed. Witer was collected from
Mel | adi ne Lake and the m ne accommobdati ons conpl ex.

From t hese sessions no negative comments were nade on
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either type of water. Sone participants concl uded that
many things could influence the colour of tea, such as
steeping tine, type of tea, type of kettle, presence of
residue in the kettle, tenperature of boiling,

et cetera.

We submtted to the Nunavut |npact Review Board on
May 23, 2023, a short video sunmmarizing this
consultation activity, and we would |Iike for you to
wat ch this.

Vi deo Pl ayed
MR. KUSUGAK: Apol ogi es that there's no
sound.

Following a commitnent neeting during the (NO
ENGLI SH FEED), we attenpted to visit the wind farm at
Ragl an in February. There was no luck as fog played a
factor, so we couldn't land at Raglan, and we tried
again in June, and this tinme with some success, sone
hurdl es. Over 33 participants, including Elders,

I ntervenors, Rankin Inlet ham et council and deputy
mayor, and the Rankin Inlet community nenbers took part
inthis visit. And this denonstrates our conmtnent to
show community nmenbers and organi zati ons what a w nd
farmfeels |like so they can see for thensel ves and nmake
their own judgnents about it.

And we would like to show a video of -- a short

video of this visit, and you will see sone participants
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that wsh not to be filned, so they were blurred out.
THE CHAI R Nl RB | egal counsel.

Procedural Matters by Nunavut | npact Revi ew Board Legal
Counsel (Roundtabl e)

M5. NMEADOWS: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Teresa Meadows for the Nunavut | npact Revi ew Board.

So, Madam Chair, with this video, the sane as the
others, we're not going to play it on the Zoom feed
because it's -- it isn't a video on the Zoomfeed. It
ends up being essentially stills out of the picture,
and we're currently just setting up the sound so that
we can play the sound. So you will be able to hear the
sound but not -- not view the video.

Vi deo Pl ayed

THE CHAI R Puj j ut Kusugak.

MR.  KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Puj j ut Kusugak for Agnico Eagl e.

After our visit to Raglan, we attenpted to visit
the Meliadine Mne with the participants in the June
cari bou workshop. Unfortunately, as the mgration was
ongoing, we only made it to Kilonmetre 12 on the road,
and this is where our gatehouse is |ocated.

During the visit, participants were able to
Wi tness first-hand what a convoy | ooks |ike, caribou
noni toring, caribou crossing the all-weather access

road, and road design. And we saw two tines caribou
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and a calf cross the road a few hundred netres of
where -- fromwhere we were, and this was a
once-in-a-lifetinme occasion for sone partici pants.

By listening to conmunity nenbers throughout
engagenent activities, Agnico Eagle is taking a
proactive approach, and this is by adopting traditional
pl ace nanes into our plans and seeking advice from
Kivalliq Elders Advisory Commttee, by designing the
Mel i adi ne extension to be alnost entirely within the
sanme footprint as the approved Meliadi ne Mne, and by
ongoi ng support for comrunity progranm ng, training
opportunities and educational initiatives, and by
continuing to conply with nonitoring and managenent
pl ans to protect the environnent and by adjusting plans
where required for the Meliadi ne extension.

And significant work was done with intervenors and
comunity menbers to address concerns that were shared
during the technical neeting, and this slide shows the
topics of interest for intervenors and status of
resol utions, and the |atest discussions revolved around
cari bou protection, fish and fish habitat, and
gr eenhouse gas reduction plan.

Thank you all for listening to our presentation
and comng to this hearing. W will now be open to
guestions, and we wll try our best to make -- give you

comments and answers. And | want to thank the
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interpreters that were -- that were interpreting while
we were maki ng our presentation. Thank you.
THE CHAI R Thank you for your
presentation. Before we nove on to questions from
community representatives, we're going to take a
15-m nut e break.
( ADJ OURNMENT)
THE CHAI R Ri ght now we're going to hear
fromthe coommunity of Rankin Inlet and the del egates,
intervenors fromhere. |I'malso letting you know
there's no participation from Nauj aat, Arviat, and
Whal e Cove. (NO ENGLI SH FEED) Nauj aat, Repul se Bay --
will be alternating -- asking -- | nean, will be asking
guestions around -- around the table. You can ask any
person or any organi zation that was presenting.

First of all, we're going to hear from Rankin
Inlet, Aine Kabvitok.
Questions by Cormunity Representatives for Rankin Inlet
( Roundt abl e)
M5. KABVI TOK: Can you hear ne?

| want to talk about the water. | grew up with ny
grandparents in Char River. She had a sod house at
Char River, and we used to drink good water fromthere.
Now | don't drink water fromthere anynore, but | do
get water from Meliadine River. | choose ny water very

carefully, and it has to be good water.
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When | was growing up -- | was 5 years ol d when
there used to be lots of caribou in Char River, and we
woul d be told to not do anything when the caribou cane
around. Don't -- we would always be told that we can't
| eave things around 'cause the aninmals or the caribous
can be disturbed if we do. So | believe those Dene
First Nations people when they were speaki ng about
their know edge. | even felt |ike crying because |
under st ood t hem

My adoptive parents are gone now. They passed
away a long tine ago, but | have been practicing by
nmyself. | live with ny husband. Quite often | fish --
| Iike fishing, and sonetines | get angry when | don't
get to go out hunting wth ny husband. But | amvery
t hankful that Dene First Nations were speaking from
experience, and | amso thankful, and I will never
forget what they said because | can relate to them

The first herd we are to | eave alone and not to
harvest them These are teachings, and we -- those

have been with us. W can harvest the ones that are

behind, not the |eaders of the herd. | don't -- that's
all 1 have to say. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Mart ha Hi ckes.

M5. HI CKES: If I scream (NO ENGLI SH FEED)

there is flies flying around.

|"mjust going to read the comments and concerns |
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wrote. Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you to NIRB for
comng to Rankin to do the hearings. Welcone,
everyone.

O | should say ny nane first. M nane is
Mart ha Hi ckes, deputy mayor for the hanml et of Rankin
Inlet. M colleagues are not available, so here | am
Wel cone, everyone, to Rankin Inlet, and thank you,
Nunavut | npact Review Board, for having the hearings in
our comunity. Good to see famliar faces and new
friends. Hope to hear good results fromthis
nmeeting -- fromthis hearing for our environnent and
all that is to cone with it. Thank you to our
translators for keeping us informned.

"Il do a short history of Meliadine and
acknow edge ny late father, Luke Siksik, who worked
hard during the 1940s and '50s for the exploration
conpany around Meliadine area. He travelled by dog
teamin the spring, wal ked in the sumrer nonths
staking -- staking clainms. |If he didn't do the work

that he did, none of us would be around this table

today. You nade -- you nade Meliadine Mne a reality.
For that, he should be recognized. | brought his
photo. It's here if people want to see it.

Thank you to First Nations for attending this
hearing. W have sane values in |ife, fought many

battles to protect our environment; therefore we wll
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continue. The comments and presentations we heard nake
us all that nore willing to do what we can for Rankin

I nl et and surroundi ng communities, listening to
coments around the table with many concerns on
Mel i adi ne extension in regards to the wind farm

Qur haml et was invited to tour the wind farm at
Ragl an mnes in June of 2023. No lnuit fromthe
community close to the mne were present. W would
have asked questions on the two turbines we saw. If |
remenber, | think we saw one caribou on our way to the
mne. No sign of wildlife around the area. The Elders
that cane with us from Rankin Inlet nentioned that the
tur bi nes were noi sy and woul d not be appropriate on our
| and.

More work and pl anni ng shoul d be done if the mne
wants to install the turbines. Next tinme, invite
hunters and trappers organi zation from Sal luit,

Nunavi k, get information fromthem see what their
t houghts are about the turbines at their mne. It
woul d have been great to hear from Rankin El ders

Advi sory Conmittee their views on the turbines too.

The terrestrial departnent with Agnico should hire
wi I dlife advisors that are bilingual and have know edge
of the land, water, and animals. W're talking about
animal s, Dene areas in that area, foxes, people trapped

in those parts in the '70s. Foxes are having their
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young ones in the spring. Dens wll be damaged pl us
ot her rodents. These are all part of our ecosystem
Al living things are nature's way of bal ance our
envi ronnment .

Another item Caribou used to cross through the
narrows. Their routes are diverted further fromtheir
mgration route. As long as the mne is in full force,
the caribou will be driven further away fromthe
m gration routes they once used to use.

Water quality. W hear fromdifferent nenbers
regarding the water quality. No longer fresh. This
issue will keep comng up from El ders and concer ned
menbers. W are going further out to fetch fresh water
and ice. It's not helping the Elders that | ove to
drink tea on a daily basis. Mst do not have
transportation, and Elders have limted nobility.
Sonehow we need a solution on this issue; otherw se
we'l |l keep bringing it up.

If saline water is being dunped in the |akes,
that's another problem Qur fish that we eat will be
affected with toxins. W are running out of fresh
water. Once the saline solution is being dunped into
our sea at Itivia, living things will be affected.
Peopl e set nets at Itivia during the sumrer. They
catch char or seals in their nets. That wll al

di sappear. Qur livelihood is being depleted very
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qui ckly both on the | and and sea.

The | ast few years, the hunters and El ders noticed

the caribou have no fat. Inuit love the fat on the
caribou. It's our delicacy. Their food chain is
di sappearing. From what, we have no clue. It mght be

the climate change or the particles in the air falling
on the ground. Not enough nutrients for the lichens to
grow. |If saline water is being dunped into the |akes,
the caribou m ght be drinking that, causing themnot to
gain the fat they store in their neat to keep them

heal thy. Many factors to our questions.

Inuit rely on country food to survive. They've
hunted all their lives. It's our livelihood. Wthout
country food, our bodies lose its nutrients to stay
healthy. Wth high cost of food in the stores, nost of
us cannot afford to keep buying store-bought groceries,
especi ally people that have no i ncone. Many young
famlies depend on food banks or from hunters and
trappers. Everything ties back to our environnment. It
gives us life and food. W grew up on country food.

Inuit, Iike the First Nations, tried to be erased
fromour land, tried to nake us into people we were
not. We will keep voicing and stand for what is ours,
our Nunavut, our land, for the generation that we wll
| eave behind to enjoy what is theirs that God our

Fat her created for us. Thank you for giving nme the
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opportunity to say what ny parents taught ne.
Quj annam i k.
THE CHAI R G ayton Tart ak.
MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair,
Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.

| have a few questions fromthe proponent in
regards to preferred -- the Rankin HTO s preferred w nd
farm |l ocation, the Subblu. The proponent nentioned
that there was a buffer around the airport of
5 kilonmetres along with a buffer of 500 netres around
cabins that prevents Subblu frombeing the site for the
proposed wind farm \Were does the 500-netre buffer
cone fronf
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR. KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Thank you, C ayton for asking. (NO ENGLI SH FEED)

buffer is the standard buffer fromthe -- fromthe
i ndustry we have. |f you have any foll ow up questions,
then -- regarding the buffer, then we'll -- we'll [ ook

into it and hopefully give you the answer you're
| ooki ng for. Matna.
THE CHAI R G ayton Tart ak.
MR TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.
Has the proponent consulted wth cabin owners in

the Subblu area to see whether or not this 500-netre
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buffer is appropriate?
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

No, we have not (NO ENGLI SH FEED) consult with
cabin owners regarding the wind farm And with
regarding the buffer zone, the 500 netres is for any

infrastructure that would be around a wwnd farm Thank

you.
THE CHAl R G ayton Tart ak.
MR, TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.

They al so nentioned that there was a 5-kilonetre

buffer around the airport. |'mcurious to know if
this -- and maybe Transport Canada could answer this as
well. Wuld the proposed wind farmbe -- would the

Canadi an aviation regulations permt a wwnd farmin the

Subbl u area as proposed by the hunters and trappers

or gani zati on?

THE CHAl R: Can you repeat your question

for the interpreter?

MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Wul d the proposed wind farm-- or can the

proposed wind farmbe permtted in the Subblu area

under the Canadi an avi ation regul ati ons?

THE CHAI R Transport Canada,

Adam Downi ng.
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MR, DOVWNI NG Thank you, Madam Chair.
Adam Downi ng with Transport Canada.

And -- and thank you for the question. So
Transport Canada reviewed both the wind farmat the

mne site and the Subblu area. Transport Canada didn't

have an opinion on which -- which |ocation was
preferred.
The -- the 4-kilonetre buffer around the airport

and the 15-kilonmetre approach zone at the end of the
runway are the only excluded portions of the Subblu
area under the Transport Canada regul ation that the

wi nd farm cannot be |ocated. Qutside -- and the

remai ning area within the Subblu are outside of those
restricted zones. And if the wwnd farmwas to be built
there, an aeronautic assessnent form would be required
as well as potentially a glare analysis review to
determ ne how the wind farm woul d i npact incom ng

aircraft. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR, KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Puj j ut Kusugak. (NO ENG.I SH FEED) comments.

THE CHAI R G ayton Tart ak.

MR TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.
Has t he proponent conducted the gl are anal ysis

that Transport Canada woul d require? And have they
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conpleted the aeronautical formthat Transport Canada
just nmentioned?
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR, KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Puj j ut Kusugak.

W haven't done the glare test that's required,
and this is only needed if and when constructi on woul d
happen. So we're basically waiting for further
I nstructions. Matna.
THE CHAI R: Cl ayton Tart ak.
MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.

| disagree with the statenent. | would assune
that should be included in -- in the alternative
assessnent anal ysis that was requested of Agnico Eagle.
But 1'Il nove on.

Has the proponent assessed what the inpacts of a
12- kil ometre avoi dance on cari bou woul d have on
I ndirect caribou habitat |oss?
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR.  KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Dan Coulton is going to answer the question.
MR COULTON: Dan Coul t on, WSP.

The assessnent of the extension assuned a
14- kil ometre zone of influence.

THE CHAI R Can you repeat that for the
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i nterpreter.
MR COULTON: Dan Coul t on, WSP.

The Meli adi ne extension assessnent included a
14- kil ometre zone of influence, and that included the
area associated with the wind farm
THE CHAI R Cl ayton Tart ak.
MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Thank you for the answer. Being that the analysis
i ncl uded a 14-kilonetre zone of influence, is there a
particul ar reason why you continue to use a 5-kilonetre
threshold for triggering mtigation neasures?
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e.
MR COULTON: Dan Coul t on, WSP.

Most of the disturbance associated with the
14-kil ometre zone of influence occurs within the first
5 kilometres of that zone of influence, so nost of the
habitat is reduced by 50 percent or nore. The existing
noni tori ng program shows that it's adaptive and
effective at protecting caribou. Thank you.
THE CHAl R G ayton Tart ak.
MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.

So is that the concl usion of Agnico Eagle
specifically, or has there been consensus fromthe
terrestrial advisory group on that?

THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Dan Coul t on.
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MR, COULTON: Dan Coul t on, WSP.

| would say that the existing evidence that we've
presented here at the hearings shows that it's
effective. Thank you.

THE CHAI R: Cl ayton Tart ak.
MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.

|"mcurious if the other nmenbers of the
terrestrial advisory group agree with that statenent.
THE CHAI R Terrestrial advisory group
nenbers. Do any of themwant to respond to C ayton
Tartak's question? Raise your hand or stand up.

Gover nnment of Nunavut, Daniel Haney.

MR, HANEY: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Dani el Haney, CGovernnent of Nunavut.

In the opinion of the Governnment of Nunavut, the
5-kilonetre threshold is not sufficient. Thank you.
THE CHAI R Any ot her nenbers of the
terrestrial advisory group?

Sayi si Dene and Nort hl ands Denesul i ne,
Dan Chr anowsKki .
MR, CHRANOWEKI : Yes. Thank you, Madam Chair.
Dan Chranowski, wildlife advisor with Sayisi and
Nort hl ands Denesuline First Nation.

Simlar to the Governnent of Nunavut, we have

concerns about that 5-kilometre threshold and woul d
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li ke to see sone discussion on changes.

THE CHAI R Are there any ot her nenbers of
the terrestrial advisory group that would like to
respond? Seei ng none.

Baker Lake Hunters and Trappers Organi zati on,

Eva El yt ook.
M5. ELYTOOK: My nane is Eva El ytook from
Baker Lake. | amon the terrestrial advisory
comm tt ee.

The Governnent -- what the Governnent said, |
repeat. | agree with them Thank you.
THE CHAI R C ayton Tart ak.
MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.

Can the proponent | et us know whether or not the
| ocal hunters and trappers organi zati on has signed on
to the terrestrial advisory group?

THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR.  KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Kangi gl inig Hunters and Trappers O gani zation has

signed and agreed to join the terrestrial advisory

group but has not attended a neeting as of yet. Thank

you.
THE CHAI R Cl ayton Tart ak.
MR TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

"1l nove on. The proponent states that they have
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integrated Inuit Qaujinmaj atugangit into their
assessnent of inpacts on caribou. Can the proponent
expl ain the nethodol ogy that they've used to do this?
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
M5. LACOURSE: Sophi e Lacourse, Agnico Eagle.

Thank you for your question. As nentioned
previously in the slides, we have established a
Kivalliq Elders Advisory Commttee. Part of the
mandate of that commttee is to review | Q that has been
coll ectively shared through engagenent activities. So
as David has taught us, 1Qis not owned by one
I ndi vi dual but should be shared and is reviewed by the
Kivalliqg Elders Advisory Committee.

So those statenents, the conmttee goes through,
and then they advise Agnico Eagle on if that should be
considered as 1Q If so, it is entered into a -- into
a dat abase as validated by our Elders advisory group.
You can find statenents that were validated by the
Kivalliq Elders Advisory Commttee through the
assessnent in the consultation section and then in the
specific val ued conmponent as well. Every conponent has
an | Q section. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Just renenber to slow down and
pause for the interpreters.

G ayton Tart ak.

MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




968

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

Just a quick clarification. So it's a soci al
science approach to integrating IQinto their
assessnent of inpacts on caribou?

THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Sophi e Lacourse.
M5. LACOURSE: Sophi e Lacourse, Agnico Eagle.
Coul d you pl ease repeat the first part of the

qguesti on.
THE CHAI R: Cl ayton Tart ak.
MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.
So it's simlar to a social science approach to

integrating IQinto their assessnent of inpacts on

cari bou?
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e.
MR. KUSUGAK: Puj j ut Kusugak, Agnico Eagl e.

So fromthe Elders advisory group and also with
neetings and community consultations that we' ve had
with community nenbers, so from-- fromhere, being
able to integrate Inuit Qaujimj atugangit, being able
to use Inuit societal values, being able to validate
them Maybe the -- what we're trying to clarify is --
i ke, what do you nean by having to categorize them
when we're collecting Inuit Qaujimjatugangit from
vari ous people, Elders, hunters, conmmunity nenbers?

If you can explain the categorizing of it, it --

it -- we'll clarify on how we can answer that one too,
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because from what we understand, the advice we get and
the teachings we get -- fromyou, | don't see where the
categorizing part if we're using lnuit
Qauj imaj atugangit and Qaujimaningit. It will just help
us try to answer you better, M. Tartak. WMatna.
THE CHAI R Cl ayton Tart ak.
MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Gl ayton Tartak from Rankin.

VWhat |'mlooking for is nore of an expl anati on on
t he net hodol ogy used, especially going fromthe dataset
t hat Sophie nentioned into a final determnation. |t
appears that that would be a -- |ike, anthropol ogy,
maybe, approach to analyzing Inuit Qaujimajatugangit.
But I'lIl nove on fromthat.

Being that they're claimng to integrate Inuit
Qauj i maj atugangit into their decision-nmaking process,
it's fair to say that a lot of research goes into
collecting Inuit Qaujimjatugangit. Does the proponent
have the appropriate research permts to conduct this
ki nd of research?
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR. KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Puj j ut Kusugak from Agni co Eagl e.

It is required that we use Ilnuit traditional
know edge, Inuit Qaujinmaj atugangit, Inuit societal

values. And this is where people |ike David, nyself,
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Al ex, and other people that we are working with to
interview, collect, categorize, if we have to,
regardi ng place nanes or historic sites. But what
we' re doing is asking questions fromour own people and
trying to make sure that Inuit are contributing into
the work that we're doing, which is a requirenent in
maki ng sure that we're interpreting it properly and
making it rel evant.

And -- and | think people can understand there are
sonme things that you can't really use Inuit
Qauj i maj atugangit for, but where it is relevant and
useful, then we do nmake sure that we have contri butions
com ng fromour Elders advisory group, comunity
nmenbers, HTO -- hunters and trappers organi zation --
sorry, and the necessary things |ike nonitoring, having
people fromthe Kivalliqg Inuit Association as well to
be able to hel p us better understand and nake
adapt ati ons where needed and when necessary. Matna.
THE CHAI R: Cl ayton Tart ak.
MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.

"1l take that as a "no" and nove on.

You nentioned that Agnico Eagle conducts water
nmonitoring around site. In certain years, the
nmoni tori ng has shown el evated | evels of nutrients

downstream fromsite. Has the proponent assessed what
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these el evated nutrient | evels has on tea col our?

THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR, KRI TTERDLI K: Thank you, Madam Chair. David
Kritterdlik from Agni co Eagl e.

This has been a question all the tine, what -- how
are we applying Inuit Qaujimjatugangit? Like I said
earlier today, we have a commttee, about four from
each community, that we will neet with, an El der
advisory conmttee. And what lnuit -- what we gather,
what I nuit Qaujinmajatugangit fromthem

These -- Agnico Eagle -- Agnico Eagle is not
i nfl uenci ng the Elders advisory conmttee, and Agnico
Eagl e does not suggest to the El ders advisory

conmmttee. But when we are going to be public hearing,

we -- | just want to explain that the Elders in each
comunity, we know what the concerns are. W -- we --
our focus is to collaborate -- the El ders advi sory

conmttee's focus is to collaborate and work with
Agnico Eagle. That's all.
M5. LACOURSE: Sophi e Lacourse, Agnico Eagle.
So | would just like to go back, before | answer
to your water question, to the question you had on the
social licence study. So basically what we're doing
and what is requested as part of the inpact assessnent
process is to do public consultations, which we are

doing. So to answer your -- your question, it's part
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of that process.

Now to get back to the water -- water nonitoring
guestion and if -- you know, and the tea colouring. So
| would just like to provide a bit of background on
that activity that we -- we've hosted.

So basically the idea canme in discussion with the
Kivalliqg Inuit Association to host public engagenent at
the mne site to explain water managenent, which we
did. You also saw a video earlier that was shown that
was that site visit. During the visit with the El ders,
we got the question on why tea m ght change col our
using Meliadine Lake. At that tine, what we said is
that the water is safe for human and for fish. That's
what we know. About tea, as you can inagi ne, Agnico
Eagle is not specialized in tea, per se, so we took
that recommendation fromthe Elders. They raised a
concern --

THE CHAI R: (NO ENGLI SH FEED). Back to,
We took advice from El ders.

M5. LACOURSE: So the Elders raised a
concern, we listened to the concern, and we've

I nvestigated. How did we do that? W found a bot ani st
which is specialized in tea bl ends because we felt that
this is the expertise that was required to answer this
guesti on.

So based on an experinent using different type of
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wat ers including Meliadine Lake, tap water, bottled
wat er, and several sanple of tea fromthe sane brand,
what the expert found out is that the actual
conposition of the tea itself was influencing nore the
colouring than the water types.

So, for instance, a tea sanple could have a bit
nore of red pignments which would then create a cup of
tea that was nore orange. W' ve hosted comunity
engagenent follow ng that experinent and presented the
results to the coommunity; the sanme group of people that

attended the water nmanagenent site visit were invited.

Thank you.
THE CHAI R Cl ayton Tart ak.
MR TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

That seens fairly conpl ex considering the question
was around nutrient |levels and the inpact that that
m ght have on tea colour, but | digress. So
essentially the answer is that instead of addressing
the concerns of the Elders, you hired a tea expert to
di scredit the opinion that they've been giving you?
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e.
MR. KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair,
Puj j ut Kusugak.

"Discrediting”, I think, is actually the wong
word here. It's not about discrediting. It's about
finding -- getting information, trying to find as nany

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




974

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

angl es as possible to help explain, and | think it's
t he purpose here about seeing and hearing different
vi ews, obviously, opinions, comrents to hear all angles
to cone up with a decision that people can hear or to
have a decision based on all the information that is
avai |l abl e and has nothing to do with discrediting
El ders. Mat na.
THE CHAI R: Cl ayton Tart ak.
MR. TARTAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Cl ayton Tartak from Rankin.

No further questions.
Questions by Community Representatives for Baker Lake
( Roundt abl e)
THE CHAI R From Baker Lake,
Davi d Om ngayak.

MR, OWN NGAYAK: | am David Ow ngayak from
Baker Lake. | have two concerns or two reasons -- from
the ham et -- | represent the ham et of Baker Lake.

And regarding the idea of wind turbines -- and if | can
say -- if | can say sonething.

| was born around here on the coast, and | was
born at Qairngniq, and | was born at Sandy Point. |

had a -- Elder adopted. They would only travel by dog

teamat that tine. And we would | ook for -- we would
trap for foxes around here, and we would go -- go
trappi ng where -- at Meliadine where the mne i s now.
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And we would travel that far from Baker Lake to trap.
And ny adopted father -- but | don't -- they -- they
often tal k about himand -- ny biological father,
Savi kat aaq.

Here a big thanks to the Dene -- Sayisi Dene
First Nations and all you First Nations. | listened to
you. Your words were -- | will not forget. And this
Is our food. The caribou is our food. And when we eat
white man's food, we don't like it all the tinme. And
If we -- we crave our foods, the fish, and when the
food -- our traditional foods are nutritious for us.

And that tine it used to keep us warm W could
not easily enter a warm house because sone of us were
born in snow houses. They would age neats to feed the
dogs because we used the dog team so nuch. There was
no ATVs, no snownobiles. W never even inagi ned, what,
ATV or skidoo, but it is the way it is right now.

| thank you very nmuch for all the good words that
wer e spoken here. But we have to work together to nove
forward. That is sonething | want to -- this is
sonmething | wanted to say. | thank the people of
Rankin Inlet. They are very welcomng. This is --
this is not very pleasant, but, our youth, we have to
continue to comruni cate and educate our youth.

There are many of us now. W only -- we don't

have enough tinme now. \Wat have you thought? Wat --
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the mning conpanies, they are helping in sone way, but
what will happen when the mne close? And as the m ne
goes through closure -- they are saying -- the
Meadowbank is al nbost at closure.

W al so have to think about the future. W wll
not live the way our ancestors |live now. The youth are
not -- are not -- don't have the know edge that we did.
And if | spoke in a wong way, |'msorry.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e.
MR. KUSUGAK: Puj j ut Kusugak, Agnico Eagl e.

Thank you, OmM ngayak, for your coments. Al
truthful and clear. Yes. W are thinking along the
sane lines. Yes. And we are thinking about cl osing
t he Meadowbank m ne soon. Yes. And then there is --
going to -- the enployees that are working there are --
will probably be taking work, so we're -- we can't just
make plans. W need people to help us nake plans for
the future.

W have to think about the next generation because
they have to -- to -- to work. There's nore and nore
yout h and young people. W give to the land. W
have -- we have to find ways to find jobs for those
that wll be enployed -- unenployed soon. And |I'm
wondering -- we're wondering if there's going to -- if

we're going to need to maybe find ways. W need to --
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we need to find ways.
There are many things that could be inpacted |ike

the wildlife, the land. W need to find ways on howto

make -- nake sure that the |land stays pristine as nuch
as possible and that there isn't a -- a big footprint.
So the -- the -- it's -- the -- the tines have changed
in mning -- in the mning sector. Back then, there

was no rules or regulations in place. There was no
envi ronnmental assessnents. But now, today, it's -- we
can't even set nets over there or | ook for nussels or
cl ans because back then -- that was back then. There
was sone type of spill that occurred when the nicke

m ne was opened. But today there are rules and
regul ati ons on how to protect the environnent.

There are taliks. There is historical water that
is salty. W can't just dunp salty water into |akes.
So what we do is transport the salt -- the historical
salty water into the Itivia area, into the Itivia
Har bour. So when the salinity is about the sane, then
It's discharged into the ocean.

| think I"mjust starting to ranble, so |I'mjust

going to stop here. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Davi d Om ngayak.
MR. OW NGAYAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Yest erday sonething stood out for nme. | was going

to nmention it, and I forgot. But we were tal king about
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t he i nukshuks, the stones that are -- are piled up.
They never -- we never used maps back then. The -- the
way that -- that inuksuit are being built is very

wong. They're all over the place and anongst the
boul ders.

Back then, they were used for identifying which
areas were good for fishing and which way the -- the

communi ties or settlenents were pointing. W knew

exactly which way to -- to use these as -- alnost |ike
a GPS but, you know, to -- to find us a way.

So, if you see, we -- we used to -- we used to
line up the -- the rocks, piled up, so that we could

use them for caribou when the caribou were mgrating,
and then they would -- the caribou would follow the --
the rocks that were piled up called "inuksuit", and
that's -- that's how they used to hunt. That's
information right there. That's know edge. Thank you.
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR.  KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.

W' re not going to -- we have no comment because
that's information that you just put out there. Thank
you.

THE CHAI R Owm ngayak, do you have any
addi ti onal comments or questions?

MR. OW NGAYAK: No. Thank you, Madam Chair.

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




979

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

THE CHAI R Eva El yt ook.

M5. ELYTOOK: Thank you, Madam Chair. [|'m
Eva Elytook. |'mfrom Baker Lake. | amrepresenting
the hunters and trappers organization. | amthe vice
chair.

Qur parents -- ny parents used to |ive here when
there was a nickel mne. | was born here in Rankin
Inlet, but | grewup in Chesterfield Inlet. 1In 1975
noved over to Baker Lake. And up to today, | live
there i n Baker.

| have three questions to the different

departnents or -- | have a question to Agnico Eagle.
The -- the windmlls, the wind farm if your project
proposal is approved and built and -- | nean,

constructed and built. There's an abundance of ravens
in our communities, and they nest during the winter.

I n Baker Lake, they tend to hang out in areas where the
hills are higher.

Now, if your project is approved and once you
start to construct and use the wndmlls around
Meliadine, I"mpretty sure that there's going to be
ravens that are going to be over there. WII the
windmlls continue to be used even though there's a
| arge flock of ravens around in that area where you
tend to construct and operate your windmlls -- or w nd

farms -- or wind farns? Thank you.
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THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR, KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Puj j ut Kusugak, Agnico Eagl e.

If there's a flock of ravens, they -- they -- the
flock of ravens won't be in that area, and there is
probably going to be nore research done as to how to
deter them W need to find deterrence on how to keep
the ravens away fromthe wind farm Thank you.

THE CHAl R Eva El yt ook.
M5. ELYTOCK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

And thank you, Pujjut, for that answer.

Second question is to the Governnment of Nunavut.
The ot her day, one of the board nenbers on the NI RB
board, Guy Alikut, had asked in regards to the
m gration of caribou -- about the collared cari bou.
Where they're -- which direction -- where they're
com ng from and where do they cal ve.

No one sai d anythi ng about where, exactly where,

i ke, the names of the place it was. Do you know where
the Qamanirjuaq caribou herd go to calf in 19 -- during
the 1980s and '90s and during the '20s? Wen we
listened to the orange radi os, people in our comunity
were expecting caribou to mgrate towards our comunity
comng fromArviat, but it |ooks |ike today they're not
mgrating to Arviat these days. So can anyone specify

exactly where these caribou are calving? I1'd like to
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get an answer.

Thank you, Madam Chair.
THE CHAI R Can the Governnent of Nunavut
(NO ENGLI SH FEED) using the place nanes where cari bou
have been known to cal ve based on the information that
t hey have?

Before we get to Eva's question -- before we go to
a response fromthe Governnment of Nunavut, we're going
to take a supper break and reconvene at 6:30, and we'l|l
continue with questions fromcommunity representatives.
( PROCEEDI NGS ADJOURNED UNTI L 6: 30 PM
( PROCEEDI NGS RECOMMENCED AT 6:39 PM
THE CHAI R Vel come back, everyone. W
wi Il now continue with the comunity roundtable with
where we | eft off before the supper break, a response
fromthe Governnent of Nunavut.

Dani el Haney.
MR, HANEY: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Dani el Haney, Governnent of Nunavut.

| think the best way to respond to this question
would be with a figure. These figures cone fromthe
proponent's report on Browni an Bridge novenents. |
think it's being -- yeah. So here we have three
periods that are represented: 1993 to 2011, which is
the pre-construction period on the left.

THE CHAI R Can you pl ease sl ow down for
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the interpreter?
MR. HANEY: Apol ogi es.

On the Ieft we have the pre-construction period
whi ch was between 1993 and 2011; in the centre the
advanced exploration stage, 2012 to 2017; and finally
on the right construction operations between 2018 and
2022. And what is being displayed on the figure is
density of caribou. And as you can see, the calving
di stribution has been slowy going to the north and
east. And based on our collar data this year, the
cari bou calved to the northeast of Meliadi ne Lake.

As many of you are aware, calving distributions
change over tine due to natural factors and possibly
human interactions. But the reality is we do not know
exactly why the calving -- the calving distribution has
changed in this manner, and we are also not quite sure
the reason why cari bou don't go near Arviat anynore.
These type of -- the reasons will be hopefully

di scovered as nore research is conducted. Thank you.

THE CHAl R Eva El yt ook.
M5. ELYTOCK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

The caribou -- the Beverly, Qamanirjuaq herd used
to travel west. The -- Arviat used to be the first to

see them and they woul d head towards Baker Lake and
arrive at Baker -- why are they comng fromthe east?

| don't know. The caribou that we see, are -- are they
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really the Beverly, Qamanirjuaq herd? It is so
confusi ng now, and we don't know where they are now.

In the 1980s, 1990, and the begi nning of 2000, I
said earlier we used to listen to those HF radios -- HF
radi os before we had cell phones. W Baker Lake --
peopl e from Baker Lake, we woul d be happy as we woul d
be expecting the caribou.

Yeah. | don't know -- | don't know how and why
they would just be far away from Arviat or skip over --
Baker Lake has not seen the Qamanirjuaq. They don't
cone in the |ast eight years now W don't even expect
them anynore. \Were are they now, and which mgration
route are they using? W didn't know that Arviat does
not see them anynore. You rely on collar data, so
t herefore you should know -- you people fromthe
Gover nment shoul d know where are they. The people of
Arvi at and Baker Lake -- the people of Baker Lake have
| ost the Qamanirjuaq caribou herd. Thank you, Madam
Chair.

THE CHAI R Gover nment of Nunavut,
Dani el Haney.

MR, HANEY: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Dani el Haney, Governnent of Nunavut.

In the area around Baker Lake, it would probably
not be the Qamanirjuag herd. That woul d be the Beverly

cari bou, and they would be coming fromthe west to the
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east towards Baker Lake.
Again, |I'mnot quite sure why Qamanirjuaq are not

goi ng near Arviat. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Eva El yt ook.
M5. ELYTOXX: Thank you, Madam Chair. |
forgot to nention ny nane. | am Eva El ytook fromthe

Baker Lake hunters and trappers.

The Beverly here, we see those across from Baker
Lake. W can see that they are headi ng south. But
Qamani rjuag herd, we never see now. Thank you, Madam
Chair.

Representatives from Chesterfield Inlet Question
Fi sheri es and OCceans Canada, Agnico Eagle Mnes Limted

and Gover nnent of Nunavut

THE CHAI R: Chesterfield Inlet.

MR, SAMMURTCK: Thank you, Madam Chair, from

Chesterfield Inlet. 1'mrepresenting the hanl et.
They' ve been asking ne for three years. | am

finally here and participating. They've often asked ne
to go. The issues and concerns of Chesterfield Inlet,
how -- how can we get nore support? W have many
barriers, and we try and get our -- to have them
addressed. W appreciate the support fromKivalliqg
Inuit Association with the cultural centre. W are
grateful for that.

But in the past and in the future, 2011 to 2018,
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"17, the anmount of ship traffic through the
Chesterfield Inlet heading to Baker Lake around
Pitsiulartok, the big ship would wait there, and they
woul d transport stuff into a snmaller ship to go to
Baker Lake. It was -- it has been difficult, and the
stuff we used to see in the -- the sea mammals -- the
sea mammual s, seal, bearded seals, none of themwere
around because of the ships because there would be many
ships going up the Chesterfield Inlet transporting
goods to Baker Lake. It is a big concern for us.
The -- why -- how can we be supported? W would ask
for help, but no one had an answer for us. W want
sonet hing to be done about this. W want to get
support. Who can answer this? |Is it Agnico Eagle, or
is it Fisheries and Oceans? WMaybe they do some work,
but we never hear about them or what they are doing.
But I'mjust saying that -- how can you help us? |
will conment nore |later on. Thank you.
THE CHAI R First we'll go to Fisheries
and Oceans Canada, Jose Audet-Lecouffe.
VR.  AUDET- LECOUFFE: Thank you, Madam Chair. Jose
Audet - Lecouffe from Fi sheries and Cceans Canada.

And thank you for your question. | -- we heard
about Chesterfield Inlet's concerns. You -- it's
nostly related to Baker Lake and Meadowbank and Whal e

Tail, if | amcorrect. And -- but we have the sane
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concerns for Meliadine Mne. W share that concern
wi th you.

We are asking -- during this hearing, we' ve been
asking to nonitor the noise to understand the inpact of
those -- the noise fromthose ships and be able to
understand what is the inpact on marine nmammal and
propose neasures to address that. W w Il see during

this process if that is a concern that is also shared

by Agnico. |[If not, nore actions wll be taken. Thank
you.
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Thank you, Sineonie. Wuat | -- what we
understand -- the ships -- ships -- the ships around
Kivalliqg, only 6 percent of the ships go to -- cone

here for the Tasirjuag. W know that the ships are to
blane. Only 6 percent of the ships are going to our
supplies for the Meliadine Mne. | don't know how el se
to answer you. But we have to continue to neet with
Chesterfield Inlet and the hunters and trappers and the
ham et, and you have to conmunicate with us too. |
don't know how else to help it or tell us how you want
hel p.

Regardi ng the ships, they bring in supplies by
ship, and we have to neet wwth themonce in a while.

And we -- we tell themwhich way -- which route to
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take, and it becane a regulation. |If you can hear us

again so that they could be nonitored, the ships, we

know t hat the Governnent will be nonitoring. W have
to be informed too. | want you to know -- and what we
said earlier that the nunber of ship will not increase.
There -- there will not be an increase in shipping.

Shoul d the expansi on be extended to 2043, nothing wll

change. That is all | can say for now. Thank you.
THE CHAI R: Si meoni e Sammur t ok.

MR. SAMMURTCK: Thank you. One of the things
that | heard, there's cabin owers up the -- along the

coast of Chesterfield Inlet around Stony Point. People
spend tinme on the |land canping there. They hear --
they can hear the ships going back and forth. Sone --
one cabin owner has a cabin from 30 kil onetres away
when it's nice outside in June and July.

There's a place called Helicopter Island around
Back River. There was a big ship that cannot enter
those waters, but the smaller boats, they go back and
forth, that used to have a Il ot of tuktu up the
Chesterfield Inlet. And the Chesterfield Inlet waters,
when there was no heavy traffic of ships, there used to
be cari bou abundant around our coast because they were
closer to the coast to be -- to cool off. And -- but
now t hey spend nore tine inland now when it's in the

fall. Wen the ships return, the caribou return to the
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coast for alittle while, and even people fromthis
area, Rankin Inlet, go hunting to our area.

Last year when the ships were | eaving, maybe there
was four or five of them and there was a barge, six of
them Those -- they go back and forth. There was a
| ot of ships that we could see. W didn't know there
could be that many. Maybe they travel up there in the
dark. Those are the inpacts.

We don't have seals anynore. There were harp
seals. There's no nore harp seals. There's been no
whal es. But today they were able -- the whales arrived
there, so thank you. W have inpacts. | want to work
wi th you, Agnico Eagle, DFO, and Nunavut Governnent.

When we are a really small community, the cost of

living is so -- and the small comrunities have not
caught up. Because of this concern and the request of
my conmmunity, | amhere to help them to help the
peopl e of Chesterfield Inlet. | was hesitant because |
have a condition, but it is ny community, and therefore
| said yes. And because | want to help ny fell ow
community, I will comment later. And if any of you
coul d respond. Thank you.
THE CHAI R First we'll go to Governnent
of Nunavut and then Fisheries and Cceans and Agni co
Eagl e.

Dani el Haney.
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MR, HANEY: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Dani el Haney, CGovernnent of Nunavut.
|'"d like to pass it to Robert Connelly, director

of Kivallig community operations, to respond to this.

Thank you.

THE CHAI R Robert Connelly.

MR. CONNELLY: Robert Connelly, Governnent of
Nunavut .

Thank you very much for the question. Although I
can't speak to the inpacts of necessarily marine
shipping in the area, one of the things that the
Gover nnent of Nunavut does to support the comunity of
Chesterfield Inlet, like other Kivalliqg conmunities, is
to assist with the summer fishery that's operated
t hrough the I qgal ukpi k Fish Plant, for exanple, whereby
| ocal fish that's harvested through commercial quotas
i s harvested, processed -- or packaged, and then
shipped to Kivalliqg Arctic Foods for further
processi ng.

This year the summer fishery has been expanded to
i ncl ude the harvesting of 25 bel uga whal es, which |
understand i s underway at the nonment from Chesterfield
Inflet. As well, the Governnent of Nunavut delivers a
country food distribution program whereby each Kivalliq
conmmunity can access up to $30,000 a year to support

the harvesting of local country food which is then
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redistributed wwthin the comunity. That includes, in
Chesterfield Inlet's case in past years, the harvesting
of fish, seals, and whal es.

Lastly, as well, the Governnent of Nunavut al so
supports marine harvesting activities through the
provi sion of infrastructure that supports harvesting
activities. And by "infrastructure", | nean a | ocal
community freezer, which is expected to be upgraded. |
know it's about 13 years old in Chesterfield Inlet.

But it's expected to be upgraded this -- this year,
and, as well, upgrades to the Iqal ukpik Fish Plant,

whi ch we are overdue. Matna.

THE CHAI R Fi sheries and Cceans Canada,
Jose Audet - Lecouffe.

MR. AUDET- LECOUFFE: Thank you, Madam Chair. Jose
Audet - Lecouffe, Fisheries and Cceans Canada.

Fi sheries and Cceans Canada wi || be happy to work
with the people of Chesterfield Inlet and Agnico and
other partners to investigate this concern. Agnico
Eagl e al ready neets, | think, annually with the people

of Chesterfield Inlet to present the shipping

managenent plan or the annual report too. | think that
could be a start to -- to start the conversation on how
we coul d manage better the issue of -- of underwater

noi se and mari ne manmals. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Sophi e Lacourse.
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MS. LACOURSE: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Sophi e Lacourse, Agnico Eagle.

So Agnico Eagle currently has the mari ne mammal
and sea observer program which basically is a
noni toring programthat observes marine manmal and
birds. So for 2022, for 92 transects surveyed for
mari ne mammal , and 163 birds survey were conpl et ed.
We're happy to say that no incidents with marine
manmmal s or seabird were reported for the 2022 shi pping
season. Mat na.

THE CHAI R Thank you.
Si meoni e Sammur t ok.
MR. SAMMURTCXK: Thank you.

When you don't hear from any organi zations or
whatever, it's kind of hard to know, so ... And then
we start to get nore confused about what -- what the
organi zations are doi ng even though we want to work
well with the organizations. But it is always hard to
know ever yt hi ng.

But for this Meliadine Mne, for the wnd
turbines, | amkind of opposed to it because those
cari bous, when they -- when they go through north --
when they used to go through north, they now go through
south. So they're turning towards the sout hbound over
the years.

And for that reason. And know ng that our
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ancestors used to know of that, the routes of the
caribou herd, there's trails for caribou, but they
don't use -- the caribou doesn't use the trail anynore.
It could be clinmate change, but |I'mnot too sure.

And al so our fish seens -- seens |ike they're
getting smaller and smaller, and the skin doesn't | ook
heal t hy anynore.

| think these things should be nore nonitored in
our communities, and maybe research can be done in
ternms of the -- those things I'mtal king about for the
communi ti es because we are concerned about those. |
often tal ked with people fromaround here, and
sonetinmes | talk to people who oppose, who don't oppose
regardi ng Agni co Eagle, but maybe | can tal k nore about

these things later on. Perhaps tonorrow too. Thank

you.
THE CHAI R: Harry AggarKk.

MR, AGGARK: Thank you, Madam Chair. [|'m
Harry Aggark. |'mfrom Chesterfield Inlet hunters and
trappers. |'mthe chairperson.

Today when Agnico Eagle had their presentation,
they tal ked about a few things. And |I have one or two
guestions, but | want to tell a little story before |
ask the question. And these Elders -- Agnico Eagle has
El der advisory commttee, and | want to add a little

bit into that.
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Since |'ve been in the -- in ny position as the
chai rperson, |'ve pretty nmuch always been with hunters
and trappers since the beginning of the devel opnent of
Agnico Eagle. And I'm | earning about themas | work.
And soneone asked earlier if the Elders are being
treated like slaves, and | want to confirmthat they
are not being treated like that. They are -- the El der
advi sory conmttees are put together for the Agnico
Eagle so that they -- they conply with Inuit
Qauj i maj atugangit. And if they have sone concerns,
they include the Elders to know nore about the | and,
the archaeol ogy of the land. They include the Elders
i n that way.

For exanpl e, Agnico Eagle, when they requested for
airstrip and -- when they requested for the airstrip
and the expansion -- when they started requesting for
expansi on, Elders advisory conmttee was informed first
right away. And then they started having neetings, and
It was obvious that they are not going to build the
airstrip. And this is because we used to neet, and we
didn't really understand why they woul d want such an
airstrip like that. But now that we understand, people
were in agreenent with it. But Rankin Inlet didn't
want the airstrip, so they stopped it. And now
with the wwnd turbines -- is -- is requested.

| would like to ask to Agnico Eagle: How big is
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the wind turbine? Like, one wind turbine, how big is

it?

Thank you, Madam Chair.
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagl e, Pujjut Kusugak.
MR.  KUSUGAK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Agni co Eagle -- Pujjut Kusugak with Agnico Eagl e.

The wind turbine's -- the blade -- the height of
the blade are 144 netres to the end, fromone end to
the other. And the thickness is 115 inches of the
wi dt h.

And the -- | was giving an exanpl e about the --
this pond over here, WIlianmson Lake. The -- the size
of that -- that -- the size or space that it would use
Is about the sane size as WIlianson Lake. | hope that

clarifies your question.

THE CHAI R How (NO ENGLI SH FEED) ?
Puj j ut Kusugak.

MR, YOUNG Thank you, Madam Chair.
Vi ctor Young from WSP Canada.

So the -- the sound power |evel of the turbine
which is the total anpbunt of noise that they emt when
they're operating at their -- at their |loudest is -- is
106 A-wei ghted deci bels. For conparison, | think
the -- the conparison that the -- that the chair had
asked for earlier during the hearing was to a -- a hau

truck that's used at the m ne.
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So that's the turbine when it's nmaking the nost
noi se. The wind turbine, when it nmakes its maxi num
noi ses, is 5 decibels quieter than the -- than a hau
truck.

Anot her sort of noise source that we've -- that
we' ve tal ked about with -- wth comunity nenbers
before is a -- is a snowmvpbile. Wen a snowmwbile or
snow machine is operating at -- at full throttle, that
woul d be about 3 or 4 decibels |ouder than the w nd
turbine. So | hope that helps. The wind turbine is --
Is basically quieter than a -- than a snowmbil e,
quieter than a haul truck. And its -- yeah. |Its sound
power |evel is 106 deci bels.

THE CHAI R Harry AggarK.
MR, AGGARK: Thank you, Madam Chair.

This isn't a question, but | just want to inform
you what | know. |'mpretty sure that you are aware of
it already. There's a place called "nallu" where
they -- the caribou cross, and they don't cross through
that way anynore, the narrows.

El ders have -- El ders have been appointed to build
a cabin over there in the -- at the narrows.

Apparently the Elders or the Elder wasn't originally
fromthese -- or -- these communities. W know they're
originally fromQairngniq. There was a group of Inuit

called the Qairnirmut that used to live in that area
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historically. And it wasn't really a favorite place to

build a -- a cabin, so it was kind of a late -- too
|ate in the season to build the -- the cabin, so
It's very -- sonetinmes we do nmake m stakes. W |earn

fromour mstakes. And that was a spot that was
originally decided upon to -- to -- to build a cabin,
but they decided not to. So the Elders that -- their
parents and their great -- their grand -- great
grandparents lived in that area near the narrows at --
at sone point.

| have sons, and | have grandchildren. W have to
nove forward. There are sone errors that have been
made, but it -- that's the past, and we have to | earn
fromour m stakes, so we need to think of our -- our
future generations so that they can have a future, a
better future. W need to help -- we have to progress.
W have to make progress.

This is not a question. The -- one of the
comments that | just wanted to al so bring up about
cari bou, about the herds. They mgrate from Manitoba
up to near Baker Lake, and sonetines the caribou are so
abundant that they have to stop traffic for hours.
It's been nore than -- at -- at -- nore than once that
the m ne had to shut down because of the mgration --
m grating caribou. 1|'ve been a chairperson for tw --

two years, and this is what | noticed.
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About two weeks ago, there was a group that was

supposed to go up -- up to see the mgrating cari bou,
but -- the -- the herds that are passing through in the
springtime. It's just, they conme in by the thousands,
and -- and they are -- when -- it cones to a point

where they're blocking the road of the haul trucks.
Agni co Eagl e was showi ng us a photograph -- or a video
of the mgrating caribou, and the road is not that
wide. |It's sort of narrow. The hunters and trappers
organi zations, KIA and the Governnment, they are

| ooking after alnost simlar -- simlar projects where
they' re doi ng surveys on cari bou. Around the
wintertinme, the caribou are going to start mgrating
south. So it's going to be difficult for those that
are trying to -- that are working at the mne site.
Sonmetinmes the caribou -- all of the caribou are
mgrating. They have to wait 'til the mgrating

cari bou pass so that they can get on the plane to get
honme. But sonetinmes -- right now, presently, there are
no caribou in our -- in our surrounding community of
Chesterfield Inlet.

We haven't seen any caribou in our community ever
since mning started at Meliadine. | think it was --
about 2020 was the last tinme we saw cari bou, and then
they mgrate along the coast, and then they go towards

Sout hanpton -- or the south side. They mgrate with
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their calves returning south. Sonetines we have to
wait for the last herd. But, again, we haven't seen
themin a long tine.

Anyway, that's just nore of a comment. Thank you,
Madam Chai r.
Representati ve from Whal e Cove Questi ons Agni co Eagl e

Mnes Limted

THE CHAI R Whal e Cove, Percy Kabl oona.
MR. KABLOONA: Percy Kabl oona, hanlet, Whale
Cove.

| have nothing witten to show, but | would |ike
to say that in Whale Cove -- people in Wale Cove often
say they want enploynment opportunities in the
comunity. They haven't said anything about the w nd
turbine. But if that -- wind turbine -- if there's --
if the project proposal is approved, we would like to
see enpl oynent opportunities for our comunity nenbers.
Thank you.
THE CHAI R WIIl the -- will the line, the
cable, the power cable, be buried or on the ground?
How will it be placed if the turbines were put up?

Agni co Eagl e.
MR ALLEN: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Ni chol as Al'l en, Agnico Eagl e.

So there would be electrical cables that would be

on the ground. These cables are already installed in
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Meliadine right now. So they go fromthe main site to
the exploration canp and other areas also. So they're
about this big on the ground, and very, very solid

cables. Thank you. WMatna.

THE CHAI R Per cy Kabl oona.

MR. KABLOONA: Thank you, Madam Chair.

(1 NUKTI TUT SPOKEN - NO ENGLI SH TRANSLATI ON)

THE | NTERPRETER: Sorry. Go ahead.

MR, KABLOONA: | was trying to say in
Decenber, January, around Baker and \Wal e Cove, |'m not
hunti ng around there, but the caribou -- usually

there's no caribous around the area even in the
springtime. W only see nusk ox, and we don't see
caribou -- we don't see caribou between Baker Lake and
our conmunity. And we don't see caribou on the shores

in the wintertinme, Peter Lake, Byron Bay.

Sonetinmes | -- we went out -- we'd go out caribou
hunting, but we didn't see too many. | know there's
proper caribou nonitoring in place. | want to thank

the Governnent, and we want to thank that there's
safety precautions put in place. But when we speak
about cari bou, sonetines we have to al nost think for
the caribou. Thank you very nuch for giving this
opportunity to voice ny concerns of -- and nmenbers of
our community. Thank you.

THE CHAI R From Tadoul e Lake, Kyle
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d i ppi ng.

MR. CLI PPI NG Hell o, Madam Chair. M nane

is Kyle AAipping. |'mfrom Tadoul e Lake, Manitoba.
As a young hunter and trapper, | live off the

| and, and | depend on the caribou. And for this thing
to keep -- to be built and going, it's going to put
devastati on on our youth, our younger generation, our

children, the Elders for our community, and everyone

el se around us. That's all | have to say.
THE CHAI R Er nest Bussi dor.
MR. BUSSI DOR: Good afternoon, Madam Chair.

Er nest Bussi dor, Tadoul e Lake.

| have been sitting here for 10 days now, it
seens. It's been rough. Lots of information. But
caribou is what ties us together here in this room
And we're fortunate the last five years we've had
cari bou every winter, and where the trouble is for us
Is the southern hunters when the winter road opens. W
get hundreds of hunters, white -- all races of hunters
with resident tags that conme up and hunt in the summer
and winter. So in right now, Septenber, the border
line is full of caribou canps run by white people and
Anmerican hunters. And the winter hunt is usually done
by a winter road where we get so nmany hunters com ng
up.

The world is hungry. Caribouis -- is -- is a
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food source that nore and nore people are finding
easier to attain. And we try our hardest to contro
the kind of hunting that goes on in our conmmunity, but
it's very difficult when the -- the treaty right to
hunt is for all aboriginal people in Canada. So we
can't chase hunters away if they're treaty, and we get
so much hunting -- | think it was 2017 that all the
cows and cal ves cane into our community within a 6-mle
radius. A hundred thousand cari bou. And none of
them-- not very many of themleft. They were
harvested by people fromall wal ks of Iife. That's our
problemw th caribou. The disruptions that we create
by industry is much nore far-fetching in this
destruction of our cultural lifestyle than we reali ze.
|"ve lived in Tadoule for 49 years, 50 years. |
see the trend with caribou. And the kind of fall
weat her we get now, early winter, is wet slushy snow
that sticks to the ground, and it freezes the lichen
that the caribou eat, and they can't penetrate that
ice, and they go el sewhere. In 2017, 2018, the whole
Qamanirjuaqg herd -- | don't know if any of you people
noticed -- they went along the coast to Churchill, and
they went up the Churchill R ver. The Churchill River
has been dammed at M ssi Falls, and the caribou
survived that winter on the tall grass in the Churchil

Ri ver. A hundred thousand cari bou, maybe.

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




1002

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

Qur Cree friends fromthe south, South Indian
Lake, they hunted those caribou. And they found spruce
needles in their stomachs, and they were skin and
bones. It nmakes you realize the little things you do
agai nst the environnent that could destroy the world.
Climate change is real, and it could take one bad
winter in the arctic, in the north. You could | ose all
the caribou. That's where things are at nowin this
wor | d.

Only 13 percent of the animals in the world are
wild. 77 percent -- 87 percent of the animals are all
donesticated and on farns. That's how we live. And if
everybody had caribou the way they wanted, there woul d
be none left, which nakes it hard for us as a snuall
comuni ty.

We were accused of killing too nuch caribou once
in the "50s. Not true. But they relocated us and
nmoved us to Churchill, and we | ost over 133 people in
16 years because they thought we killed too nuch
cari bou.

We are probably the nost protective of caribou.

We respect them W had to learn that the hard way.
We're very cautious how we hunt. W set the young boys
up two weeks ago. The health departnent did. They
harvested 30 aninmals -- 25 aninmals. Nice, fat cari bou.

So the caribou are running away from di sturbances.
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Even a piece of plastic blowwng in the wwnd will scare
a herd away. W know that. It's -- it -- it's
difficult to -- to watch when the winter road opens and

the anount of hunters that we get in our territory.

We |ive along the border, and we have a | and team
We have |land. W have resources. W have fish. W're
very luckily to have those things. But caribouis --
Is -- they're like a litnmus test on -- on us, on al
the land. The nore activity we do, it affects them
And once you break up a herd, they break up into too
smal |l of a group. They becone disoriented. They
venture into new territory. They becone vulnerable to
wol ves and ot her predators. W could lose all the
caribou in our lifetinme if we're not careful. And the
hi gher the price of goods in the stores, the nore
desire there is for caribou. That's just the way it
IS.

But -- it's troubling, but I -- 1 want to tell a
story of a man. He goes back in history before
settlers canme to this land. Wen the caribou were so
plentiful for our people, the people started putting
ri bbons on them They said, Wen these caribou cone
back next fall, this one wll be mne. And they
cl ai med ownership of caribou. And for that reason, the
cari bou di sappeared for our people according to the

stories of our ancestors and our Elders that tell the
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stories. That's how our history is passed down.

It took a man who had spiritual connection with a
caribou wormthat lived inside the antler of a caribou
far, far away. He comunicated with that little spirit
animal that was a bug. But that little bug, he
listened to it, he comunicated with it, and he found
the caribou for the Dene people again. And he said he
found them under the ground. But he brought the
cari bou back to our people.

And the lesson in all this was that we cannot ever
claimownership of wildlife. W're blessed to have it.
So it's kind of a paradox. W' re talking about m ning
and all these things, and -- and the di sturbances on
cari bou. You just got to be careful.

Kudos to Agnico Eagle for trying to clean up its
act, to have a clean mne. But still when you mx --
m X arseni ¢ and cyanide and acid and all these
wonderful things that go with mning, you can never
have a clean mne. There's always going to be
pol | uti on.

In this country up here, the scars you put on the
| and, they stay for a long, long tinme. That's the only
bad thing about living in the far north is that you
can't hide the destruction that you put on the | and,
and the animals see that too.

But it's not all doomand gloom | think there's
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opportunities and there's ways to fight climte change.
But it takes a whole world, a village to nake that
happen. And all we can do is try.

As a comunity, small comunity, we took the
environnmental route. W want to protect our rivers.
W want to protect our caribou. W're trying to create
an indi genous protected area in our watershed to -- to
keep m nes out and to keep hydro from danm ng or
diverting our rivers. And that's the other alternative
to mning, is just going the other route and be
environnmentalist. But you got to eat. You got to
live. W got kids. It's difficult. Al we can do is
keep trying to inprove how we live with these animals
that are so inportant to us.

| want to thank a friend I nmet online,
M. Cayton Tartak. He's the reason why the Dene are
here. He alerted us about the devel opnents up here a
few years ago, and | sit on as a representative for
Tadoul e Lake on a cari bou nmanagenent board. It
surprises ne that, the survey they did | ast sumrer.
Not this past sumrer but the sumrer before, | believe.
We need to know how nuch is in that herd of ours.
Maybe we' Il find out in Novenber. W have a neeting in
Churchill.

But | find it surprising that that information is

not forthcomng at a neeting as inportant as this.
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What is the herd size? And | think the fear is that if
it beconmes -- the | evel of population of caribou, it
goes below a certain threshold, then the m ning conpany
starts sweating. All the industries in the north wll
start scranbling. So it's a very powerful information
that's going to be forthcom ng within the next 30 days.
What is that herd size? W don't know. W weren't
told. But we will hopefully.

And | think there's institutes of governnent that
step in when the popul ation of the cari bou goes bel ow a
certain point. And there's restrictions put in place
on all kinds of developnents. So all we can do is hope
and wait and pray that the nunbers are stable. Because
with all the herds in Canada, they're all nore or |ess
depl et ed except our herd, the herd that we live on.
And if -- it's only a matter of tinme before that
popul ati on goes down, and then we'll be in serious
trouble. But let's just hope and pray next nonth that
the information we get fromthe Nunavut WIldlife Board
on the taggi ng and the popul ation survey they did is
decent nunbers that we can live with for the next

little few years.

So wth that, | don't really have a question for
anybody. Just that -- just to be weary and to -- to be
careful, | guess, how we devel op our territories.

Thank you.
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THE CHAI R From Lac Brochet,
Napol eon Denechezhe.
MR. DENECHEZHE: Hello. M nane's
Napol eon Denechezhe.

Madam Chair, we don't know how | ong we're going to
be here and discuss this issue. And what we're talking
about right now today, we're all aware of it. And the
people that -- tal king about today and how they live on
the caribou, they nade a really good presentation, the
At habasca Dene. W live that way, living on cari bou.
Even in our hardship, we never feel our hardshi p when
we see cari bou.

Even -- even you hear about the word "caribou", it
makes you feel happy in the heart. People learn
trapline that | renmenber. Far away into the barren
| ands we put trap. People travel into the land, up to
the barren lands, to hunt for caribou. Doing right
now. It is -- it is true howthe Inuit people talk
about it. Also see the way -- that was your
livelihood. And that's your livelihood, the lifestyle
they live. |If it's going to be inpact like that in the
future -- of course, the industry right nowis -- is
only after one thing, is -- industry -- is noney.

Us. You don't really care nmuch about our
traditional way of life. They live off the farm ani nal

and chicken and everything like that. W're not |ike
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t hat .

Yes. | renmenber back long tine ago when | was a
child, | renmenber. | didn't go to school. | journeyed
back to -- to trapline -- to the north to the trapline.

It got so cold, and it freeze up. Nothing. There was

not hing. There was nothing to -- people were paddling
and everything, no notor. It was hard paddling all the
way back to the -- to the honeland. It was quite a

ways. They were going fromBrochet all the way to the
territories, the barren land, and it froze up before
they get to their destination. | renenber very well.
It was hardship. It was very hardship. | renenber.

It was four homes that -- that froze up before they go
to the destination. They're only in a tent. It wasn't
a fishing lake. It was a kind of a small -- just a
river, settling pond. The only fish that was avail abl e
was a jackfish. Witefish was sone but very skinny.
Peopl e used to harvest fish before they are trapped.
They harvest fish in the falltine and put it on a rack
in the fall before they go trapping in the fall. They
used to do that.

After it freeze up, there was really not that nuch

to do. So even -- we cut off the fish fromthat rack,
even with kids, you know it's spoiled, we still eat it
as a kid.

Ri ght now, ever since | start making a |living on
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my own, | go trapping the land. | try not to have
things -- shortage of ny supplies. | trap in 50 years
of ny life. | renmenber it all the tinme. | don't want

to be short on ny food supplies. Even though cari bou
if I hear are a long ways, | journey for it. Not far
for me to go and get the caribou. People used to |ive
like that, live on the caribou, many years ago.

Ri ght now caribou is a big agenda item Anywhere
where we go. Wthout the caribou, we won't be here.
This industry right now, whenever, the way they see fit
for them the conpany -- we'll also have to get
toget her and work together, how we want to work
t oget her, how we can work together and get into an
agr eenent .

Even this industry right now, of course, they want
it -- they want us, the First Nations people that were
here today from Lac Brochet, Mnitoba, and also a
further Dene nation -- | work with a board nenber of
cari bou managenent board along with Ernie here, Jimmy.
We know how the caribou is discussed at a cari bou
managenent board and how people -- how people harvest a
cari bou and | ook for a caribou. If it's going to be
sone kind of an inpact on that, we develop a protocol.
We're going to be -- start putting down regul ations, a
hunti ng regul ati on, together. And once that's put

together -- once that's put together, then we're going
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to make our own laws for our own people. That's what
we're waiting on right now.
The sports hunting right now that's happeni ng,

that non-First Nations that's hunting on our territory,

they're also going to be -- cut that out too as well.
W'l |l see what happens. About four, five years, we're
going to be looking at -- put -- put the plan together.

And with that and what |'mtal king about right now,
that industry, that industry right now today, we -- al
the coomunities and all the Elders got to get together

down the |line sonewhere in the future, how we want to

see work for the -- for aboriginal people. W have to
also -- to raise a voice for our |land and cari bou.
Peopl e -- voices are strong. Wen we vote and took a

treaty, we were very hardship. Even though | speak
English very well, but |I speak the Dene | anguage. |
say what | could say in English too right now.

Wiy does the -- the wildlife where our calving
ground -- why you're setting that devel opnent right
now? That's not the only spot there. Wen we went and
toured, there's a big area where the harvesting, where
the cal ving ground, post-calving. There's also a
couple areas that been -- are -- been post for.

But why that calving site? | want to tal k about
that, but it's enotional for ne right now \When | was

a child -- when | go back to what | was telling you
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about, the story where -- where a | ake froze over
before we get to our destination, about 4 kilonetres
where our destination was, back then fromwhere the --
the | ake froze over, nme and ny |late dad and friends and
our brothers, and -- we start -- we walk along the
esker. About three days' walk before we got to the
destination, |ooking for caribou, and we're just

| ooki ng for caribou then. There was nothing. But they
still wal ked back to where we were.

Peopl e worked that hard to find food. Yeah. But
they didn't have anything when they wal ked on that day.
Shot one beaver. Sonetines -- in two small kits and
with ny dad's friend. For a journey for the cari bou.
There was not hing back then. There was no cari bou.

Cari bou were livelihood for us. W had to raise our
voi ces for the cari bou.

Things that we live on in this world to |ive on,
now ki nd of been nmessed around wth. Since |I renenber

when | was a child a long tine ago and the resource

conservation officer. People -- 1 -- 1 don't --

there -- there was no comunication with our -- our
peopl e, their words been passed on. So when -- you're
not supposed to feed the caribou neat to -- caribou --
but the -- the dog is your transportation. |If you feed
the caribou neat to your dog, you go to jail. That's
how it was a long tinme ago. | renenber that. They
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will put on a chore, and we had to clean all the

cari bou bones froma dog (I NDI SCERNI BLE) somewher e.
What for? Wy -- that was our own transportation, our
dog food. |If they're not fed, how are they going to
wor k, and how we're going to get -- and use for
transportation? And it wasn't right at all.

Di srespecting our way of life, the non-First Nations

peopl e.

They woul d not done -- they wouldn't be |ike that
in this day and age. So people -- before the resource
peopl e conme in, they -- they used to set net. There's

no ice chisels, so you had to use an axe. About 3 feet
of ice, howthick that ice were. And it took them
three days to set one net using an axe. There was no
chisel. They have to put -- nove a stick, distant to
di stant.

To even live today, we're still struggling against
our regulations. But today is not |ike before. Things
are there right now today. Even right now. And the
only way we're struggling right now -- the regul ati ons
been put in place. That's -- only -- nmake this
suffering against it.

| seen many things. | work many places. Even
t hough very little | have, sonetines things are okay
and sonetinmes not. | work -- | work hard. | work

hard, and | struggle too as well. | even have a
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massi ve heart attack fromthat. And when | went

through that, and | had a stroke. Twi ce. Twce |

had -- had a stroke. And right now!l -- | heard --
my -- hard on ny vision right now due to that. It's
still today.

Last week | went up to Stephens Island with a
youth, went on a journey for a caribou. For the
| ongest tine, | hunt for people on ny reserve.
Everybody | ooks up to ne fromny reserve. They | ook up

to ne. They won't let ne go on because |I work for

them Even | do the sanme thing today. |'m 74 years
old right now That's how we work. If we work |ike
this, you gain know edge. Even | go alone, | -- | plan

how |I''m going to do things.

Even right now -- |I've given a |ot of thought what
we' re discussing today right now. And mining industry
right now, the devel opnent, | never know anythi ng about
it before. The Board -- | m ssed one neeting one tine.
Maybe that's a tinme that it was nentioned about this --
this devel opnent. Before that | didn't know anyt hi ng
about this devel opnment. Now we're tal king about an
agenda, about the caribou. The Board nenber should be
informed. And they said that we were advi sed, the
board nmenber. | didn't hear nothing, ne.

If you want to be working behind cl osed doors,

that's not right. If you want to tell the people, you
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want to show the nenbers, we understand. |If you wote
us a letter, we would know about it. If | start

tal king about issues, | don't want to quit talking.
But if | get another opportunity like that, | wll
share sonme nore. For now, thank you.

THE CHAI R Before we continue with the
community roundtable, we're going to take a 15-m nute
br eak.

( ADJ OURNMVENT)

THE CHAI R If you can pl ease take your
seats, and we'll conti nue.

There's sone participants who are leaving in the
norning, so we're going to change the order a little
bit to give an opportunity to people that are |eaving
in the norning to either ask questions or make
comments, and we'll go back to the order of the
roundt abl e that we started with once we get through
those partici pants.

First, Coreen Sayazie. |s that
Questions by Black Lake First Nation Athabasca
Denesul i ne Ne Ne Land Corporation (Roundtable)

MS. SAYAZI E: Good evening. Thank you,
Madam Chair. |'m Chief Coreen Sayazie of Bl ack Lake
First Nation. Thank you to the elder for the prayer
today. Welcone to all. Thank you, NIRB staff, board

of directors staff, and all the Elders, and everyone
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here. W are thankful to be here today to provide our
concer ns.

One of the nost inportant aspects to us is the
cari bou and the I ands that sustain them The
barren-ground herds have their calves in Nunavut and
travel into our territories for fall and w nter.
Through these mgrations of the caribou, we are
connected to the | ands and peopl e across Nunavut.

Qur hones, our famlies, our comunities are built
on a foundation of our relationship with the cari bou.
Qur bodies, mnd, spirits are fed by the caribou. W
are the caribou, so having the opportunity to speak
today is very inportant to all of us.

We are all fortunate to be here today to plan for
our future. A future where we want to see | arge
heal t hy herds of caribou follow ng their ancient
m gration routes and shaping the lands with their
novenent. A future where our great great grandchildren
continue -- will continue to follow our cultura
tradition in a relationship with the caribou, a caribou
where the -- a future where the caribou may once again
be flourishing enough to cone into our conmunities.

This is a unique opportunity to deci de what kind
of future we want before the land is covered with
devel opnents and before the caribou population start to

truly crash.
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Ri ght now here today, we can stand up and say t hat
we want a future with caribou, and nowis an
opportunity to nmake that happen.

In our communities, teaching our children our
traditional way is very inportant to us. W have youth
cari bou canps where El ders teach youth about the
cari bou, how to harvest and how to properly respect the
cari bou and use every part of the cari bou.

We teach them our cerenonies, which are a very
I nportant part of our relationship, and the drum-- our
druns conme fromthe caribou. That's how we show our
respect to the caribou.

W are thinking of these children and hold them
wWith us here today as we nmake our comments and the
future of caribou.

| ama ' 60-scoop survivor. | ama residential
school survivor, but before | knew residential school,
we only ate what we hunted. That's all. None of our
food were bought from breakfast to supper.

In the '70s as a little girl, this one winter we
cone honme fromthe residential school, and people were
yelling happily, famlies getting together. There was
cari bou right on our lake, and | was a little girl.

And that's the last tinme we seen that, and this was in
the late '70s. Oh, it was a happy event in our

comuni ty.
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Language. |'mproud to say ny community is one of
the far north communities where our |anguage is still
strong. Qur young ones know our |anguage. W talk
fluently with our children. Being a residential school

survivor from kindergarten all the way up to high

school, | lost ny language. | lost ny Dene. But |'m
proud to say when | cone honme, | needed to talk to ny
grandma. | relearned it. Once it's instilled in you,

it's always going to be in you, is what the Elder said.
And | got it all back. | talk fluently to ny famly,
nmy comunity. That's how our community support each

ot her, through our |anguage and our culture.

And | used to be enbarrassed. | didn't know how
to cut up a caribou. | didn't know how to nake dry
neat, and | was shy, and girls younger than ne knew
nore of the caribou than | did because they were | ucky
to stay hone. But after residential school, | got
married young. | was a child and rel earned ny
| anguage, relearned nmy culture. Now |l'mproud to say |
can cut up a whole caribou and nmake dry neat, and it
makes ne proud of who |I am today.

But when they were trying to nake us believe to be
enbarrassed about our culture, it took nme a long tine
for reconciliation to happen. And, yes, alcohol and
drugs has taken over our people, and it was never |ike

that. The way our ancestor tells the stories, there
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was not hi ng unknown, and now that's what we live in.

Seeing that as a little girl nade ne | ook at ny
future. | don't want ny kids to see ne that way. |
want to break that generation of drinking, and | kept
my promse, and | raised four boys. They're all adults
now, as | had themwhen | was pretty young, and I
rai sed them and now they're all on their own, and
hopefully 1've taught them-- and I'mstill teaching
them W're still learning fromeach other our
culture, but that's what we need to sustain in our
conmuni ti es.

W don't want to | ose the caribou. W don't want
to lose our tradition. W don't want to | ose our
culture. It's tinme for reconciliation, as everybody is
tal king reconciliation. W need to help our northern
Dene, Nunavut, Inuit. W all need to reconcile
toget her what they did to us back in the days, and this
Is not those days anynore. W can speak up for our
children, our conmunities.

Qur ancestors fished, hunted, and trapped, and we
want to keep our traditional lifestyle Iike that. Now
in my conmmunity | see |ots of young coupl es goi ng back
onto the land building cabins. Like, nowit's
mandatory fam lies have cabins. They're teaching their
young ones fishnet setting. Things -- everything is

out on the land again. W're com ng back. Qur
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tradition has cone back, and |'m proud to say we're

com ng along, and we don't want to | ose our cari bou.
So | wanted to tell you ny little story, and to

it's a big story, but that's where | cone from and

t hank you. Thank you for all hearing our stories her

Thank you, Madam Chair, and ny nane is Coreen from

Bl ack Lake First Nation, Athabasca Denesuline Ne Ne

Land Corporation. Qur |and (DENE SPOKEN). WMahsi cho

THE CHAl R Bart Tsanni e.

Questions by Hatchet Lake Denesuline First Nation

( Roundt abl e)

MR, TSANN E: Thank you, Madam Chair. Chi
Bart Tsanni e of Hatchet Lake, Denesuline Nation from
Saskat chewan.

And, first of all, I want to say ny condol ence t
the famly that they |ost and the surrounding
community, | think, so my condolence to the famly.
It's very hard to lose a famly and especially the
El ders.

|'"mgoing to probably say a few -- a few words |
English, and then I'm going to go in Dene.

Anyway, | want to thank everyone around the tab
the presenters, and the people that attend this
hearing. It's a very inportant hearing that needs to

be heard for the industry and for the |and users

because, you know, the reason why we're here is just

me

e.
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li ke nyself, | didn't know nmuch infornmation about
what's happening in the calving ground and the

m gration of the caribou, and ny council has inforned
nme -- that's sitting beside ne -- has said there is

t hi ngs happening in Rankin, and they're going to have a
heari ng today, this week, so that's why |I'm here.

And also | want to thank the Elder for this
nmorni ng prayer. (DENE SPOKEN). And, you know, for our
nati on, you know, when we have a big neeting like this,
we usual ly have the drum sound too, and | have a
col | eague here that has the drum David has the
cari bou drum So every tine the -- you know, when we
have neetings, especially Tadoul e and Northl and Dene
and -- you know, we utilize the drumfor any neetings
and the cl osing too.

The -- you know, | nyself, |'ve been out on the
| and too and also with the youth since | becom ng a

| eader 14 years ago, and | have served ny conmmunity for

close -- close to 15 years as chief.

You know, on this drumhere -- we took the youth
hunting in April, the first week in April, because we
took the youth out to -- like, for themto | earn what

it means to us and what it neans to themtoo. But
the -- you know, in the norning one of ny cousin, you
know, the youth asked hi mand said, You know, maybe you

can drum and we'll probably see caribou. So he did
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drum and we were getting ready to take the kids out --
the youth out, and all of a sudden there's two cari bou
com ng al ong, you know. So that's how strong the drum
i's, you know, and there was two cari bou, and the youth
were very happy to see that caribou.

From the south that we cane here and join -- and
what we're going to tal k about today, it's about
caribou. It's a very serious issue for us -- and us,
we are raised on the caribou. Everybody around the
table right here said they -- without the caribou, we
won't be here today. That's what | heard all week.

| also work with people as a | eader nyself. The
caribou, if they journey and conme back to us and work
with us when you go hunting, please respect the
caribou. W say that a lot. W stress it. It's not
for us. It's for the generation that we speak for.
I"'msure it's like that today, the people in Rankin.
And you al so speak and plan for the protection of the
caribou. If we don't talk for the generation, then the
young generation cannot talk for thenself today. W
have to plan ahead for the generation.

This mning industry right nowis not going to be
there forever. It's not going to be there -- when
they're done what they need to take, and they're gone.
Us, the people that's here right now, you'll be here

for a long tinme, and your generation will be here. And
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the ones who are not even born here will still be here
on the | and.

Wth all these m ne devel opnent right now, you've
got to listen to us too. Today is not |ike the old
days. A lot of things are different now than it
was before. And the way | work for -- we also -- |
| ook towards econonm c devel opnent. W |ook at a | ot of
areas in our econom c devel opnent for the people, and
the reason why we -- that -- that governnent that fund
us for a programis not enough. | have a |ot of people
on ny reserve right now Even people out here from
Manitoba is like that too. W |ook at economc
devel opnment. W | ook for jobs for people. That's --
I"'mreally | ooking towards that devel opnent.

This wind turbine right now, you know, what we're
di scussing right now today, if the location is changed,
of course, it may be better, but not on the area where
cal ving ground or post-calving ground. Mybe not there
it my be better. Even ny people from Manitoba and
Saskat chewan and El ders who go back to our community,
they will think the sane way. W have to speak one
Voi ce.

Wth that -- and also we cane here: five
communi ties, Mnitoba nmenbers, and Saskat chewan Fir st
Nations. |It's right here, our next door. Lac

Brochet -- as well in Brochet there are cari bou. These
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are (I NDI SCERNIBLE) as well. W're not far apart from
one another. There's another -- and Stanley Mssion to
Ceylon Park, they're also people hunting. Ernie also
spoke about that. And treaty people, we cannot tell
themnot to go hunting because they're treaty rights to
hunt. If all we can manage and protect and work
toget her towards the caribou protection.

Tonorrow we're going to go back as the three

chiefs from At habasca. W've got things to do on our

reserve. The people that we are here today -- that
came with us to nake their -- and made their
presentation, |1'd like to thank themall and work with

us on ny reserve, and al so Bl ack Lake and Fond du Lac,
I"d like to all work together as one. If we don't work
toget her, we know we'll|l be having sone hard tines.

And the people that we'll be | eaving behind here,
I'"d like to thank themall too. W've got to go hone
tonorrow, and |I'mvery happy that |I'm here and spend
sone tinme and listen to all of you and took the
positive words fromhere and how we can work together
towards the caribou, the caribou all the tine.

And we would not -- wi thout the caribou, we
woul dn't be -- we rely on caribou. Even on ny hone
reserve we are happy to get caribou, but right now the
cari bou neat is low, and we don't know when the cari bou

will be comng back. WIIl it always conme back to us in

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




1024

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

the winterti ne?

Now | cane here, and all the people at the Board
right now, they're the ones -- the deci sion-naking
body, and they take a really serious | ook at how are
you going to make the decision. And when it cones to
the point and they work together and make a positive
deci sion, we have to work together as a nation.

Right now !l listen to ne tonight, and | thank you
and God bl ess every one of you. Thank you very nuch.
THE CHAI R From Rankin Inlet, Krista
Zawadski. Are you |leaving? Oay. |'ll go back.
Questions by Krista Zawadski (Roundtabl e)

M5. ZAWADSKI : H . Thank you. I'mfrom
Rankin Inlet. (NO ENG.I SH FEED) for allow ng ne the
opportunity to speak.

| want to thank everyone that's here. 1It's been
really good to hear all of your comrents and feedback
fromacross Inuit and Dene | and.

My comments are -- have to do with the quality and
ethics of Agnico Eagle M nes research nethods and
protocols. This has been nagging at ne since | first
heard about the research that you did, which is posted
on the walls there, the research wwth the caneras.

Last week you did not provide specific evidence of
tuktu crossings at nalluit sadlik when questioned by a

bi ol ogi st despite having clained tuktu did cross

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




1025

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

because you had pictures. | want to use this as an
exanple to point out that this is a downfall of your
resear ch.

I nuit know about tuktu by watching and | earning
and sharing stories of what we have observed. You
failed to share any stories of how tuktu are crossing
since the mne was built despite the m ne being right
next to the narrows.

| woul d hope that you woul d take a broader
approach than what you have done as your nethods are
narrow m nded and rooted in western nethodol ogi es
Wi t hout considering how Inuit do research. It's as
t hough Agnico Eagle is striving for the bare mninmumto
conduct quality and respectful research.

Further, 1'mnot hearing enough about how I nuit
are included. Did you get |local perm ssion to conduct
your research projects? |If not, you are disregarding
and di srespecting proper protocols on lnuit [and. |
have heard repeatedly Inuit and Dene aski ng about
visual inpact of the wind farmon tuktu. Now, if you
had seriously taken into consideration Inuit expertise
i n your research and your analysis, you would know t hat
tuktu obviously would be affected visually by the w nd
turbines. Inuit use inuksuit to aid in hunting and to
guide tuktu to specific areas, as both Inuit and Dene

have shared. An inuksuit are not even very |arge
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structures. Take that into account, and lnuit wll
tell you through their experience on the |and that
gigantic wind turbines wll affect the tuktu.

You are also failing at including Inuit and
I ndi genous research net hodol ogi es and protocols. It is
clear to ne that your data collection analysis and
interpretation is rooted in western or qall unaat
met hodol ogi es. This is concerning because it |eaves
out the voices of Inuit and other indigenous peopl es,
those of which are affected by mning and its inpacts.

It also nmeans that Inuit and indi genous
researchers are not given the opportunity to
participate in aspects of the research. If you did, |
bel i eve you woul d have a nore conprehensive research
that provides quality and respectful outcones.

You have said you draw on the expertise of Elders
t hrough your El ders advisory commttee yet you have not
provi ded details on what nenbers of that group have
said about the wind farm and proposed extension and
whet her they expressed concerns with the proposal.

Based on ny conversations in the community, | find
it hard to believe that Inuit would not be concerned
about the inpacts of wind turbines in mning on tuktu.
These concerns are clearly being expressed at this
heari ng.

You have tal ked about supporting lnuit in
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I ndustry, supporting Inuit famlies and well -bei ng, and
supporting lnuit economcally. | have not heard
anyt hi ng about supporting Inuit in research. | think
Agni co Eagl e needs to be nore aware of the inplications
of not including Inuit and indi genous people nore in
the research process. Do you have lnuit in any aspects
of the research? Are there Inuit involved in the data
anal ysis and interpretation? D d you get | ocal
perm ssion to conduct your research projects? Apart
fromyour Elders, are you involving younger lnuit in
research?

In closing, | want to share sonething that
Ber nadette Dean shared before on a panel on Inuit
research net hodol ogies. She shared with us an
(I NUKTI TUT SPOKEN) saying that goes sonething |ike
(1 NUKTI TUT SPCKEN), and it nmeans during tines of
scarcity, there is a need for innovative thinking. So
that's ny challenge for you is to be nore like Inuit
and think in innovative ways. Qujannam i k.
THE CHAI R Agni co Eagle. Pujjut Kusugak.
Manon Tur el .
M5. TURMEL: Manon Turnel, Agnico Eagle.
Thank you for your comments and questions. Thank you
for your interest in youth getting nore involved in the
research activities that are being conducted at

Mel i adi ne.
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| would agree that we can always do nore, but |
will explain a fewthings that we're doing at site.

First of all, you pointed -- you asked the
guestion about the research permts, if we're pulling
research permits for our nonitoring and activities.
Yes. W do so yearly through the Governnment of
Nunavut, and prior to requesting a permt, we have to
go and discuss with the Kangiqglinig Hunters and
Trappers Organi zation to gain their support and coll ect
any feedback.

As for if we're involving Inuit Qaujinmajatugangit
into -- and traditional know edge into our studies, the
hunt er harvest study that's been in place for the past
three years is conducted by the Kangiqglinig Hunters and
Trappers Organi zati on, not by Agnico Eagle. And,
additionally, the terrestrial advisory group includes
traditional knowl edge and Inuit Qaujimajatugangit. So
| would say we can do nore to involve youth in
research, but we're doing our part.

Finally, during the caribou mgration, as ny
col | eague Matt pointed out earlier in the technical
session, the surveys and decisions are nade in
col l aboration with the Kivalliqg Inuit Association, the
Kangi gl i nig Hunters and Trappers O gani zati on, and we
have Inuit as part of the environnent departnent that

are out inthe field. So really it's based on |oca
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know edge that we nake the observati ons and deci sions

as to what activities will be closed -- when the road
wi Il be closed and opened. Thank you.
THE CHAI R Kevin Mercredi.

Questions by Fond Du Lac First Nation (Roundtable)
MR. MERCREDI : Good eveni ng, everybody.
Thank you for having us here.

|"d Iike to thank the Nunavut | npact Review Board
and the big job that they do have ahead of them and a
| ot of the work that you guys have to do and the
bal ances of just making sure that everything -- the
deci si ons you guys neke are right.

My nane is Kevin Mercredi. |'mchief of Fond du
Lac First Nation. | wanted to acknow edge ny nother's
mai den name, which is White Caribou. Caribou has
al ways been inportant to ny famly and also to ny
community. M comrunity nmenbers of Fond du Lac have
been referred to as (DENE SPOKEN), caribou eaters, and
sonetinmes lightheartedly called "caribou neat". You
are what you eat, | guess.

But, in all seriousness, we nmay have been
i ndoctrinated into western religions, practices, but
the intrinsic nental, spiritual, physical, cultura
relati onship we have with the caribou and its habitat
has remained in our hearts and in our blood. W all

have a responsibility to protect what has given us life
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for years, the caribou and the inportant habitats |ike
cal ving grounds that sustain the caribou.

Cari bou have very acute sensory abilities, and the
effects of industrial devel opnent and how it inpacts
the caribou is not fully understood by western science.
We can't begin to have the understanding that our
El ders have. They have know edge passed to them from
over thousands of years. They have a know edge and an
under st andi ng beyond the witten word of the |and that
we call hone.

It is our responsibility nowto protect the |Iand
and cari bou. W have to understand the true
consequences of our actions because the cari bou have
sustained us for a mllennia, and now we nust naeke the
right decisions to protect themfromthe threat of
extinction. |If the caribou don't exist, we won't
exi st.

It would be a system c genoci de of a peopl e,
l'ivelihood, and culture, simlar to what happened to
the bison and the indi genous groups that depended on
them Yes, we are progressing and devel opi ng, but we
al so have a responsibility to protect the inportant
cari bou habitats.

Al the devel opnents in the north have al ready
I npacted us and our territory, the mgration of caribou

and -- caused declines in their populations. W owe it
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1 to our children and the future generations to nake

2 responsi bl e decisions. In ny tine, | would not want to
3 be responsible for the irresponsibility of man in

4 destroyi ng what sustains us and its habitat.

5 We have becone desensitized to nmuch of the harm
6 t hat devel opnents have on all living things and their
7 habitat. W, all of us here, nust respect and protect
8 the living beings within the land irrespective of

9 boundari es because our identities as distinct cultures
10 can and will be adversely inpacted.
11 Ongoi ng consul tation and involvenent in this
12 processes and recommended processes by all the
13 i ntervenors here nust continue past this hearing.
14 Anything that is relevant to us, we need to be kept
15 i nformed and updated to make sure that our interests
16 and rights are protected.
17 |"mgoing to end this with a quote from one of our
18 past scholars the |ate Leon Fern: (as read)
19 The sanme bl ood that spills in the calving
20 grounds during calving is the sane bl ood that
21 flows and flows through nmy veins. In order
22 for our people to survive, we nust protect
23 the cari bou and where the caribou calf.
24 | thank you all for hearing ne, and |'mvery

25 appreciative of the hospitality here in Rankin. Thank
26 you.
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THE CHAI R Bri an Zawadski, are you --
MR. ZAWADSKI : Thank you, Madam Chair.

It's alnost 9:00, and | have about -- a few pages
here. | don't think we want to be here till m dnight,
so can | defer till tonorrow?

THE CHAI R Yeah. | wasn't sure if you

were travelling or not. W've got a list of people who
are travelling and won't be here tonorrow, so that's
okay.

So as it was nentioned, it's alnost 9:00. Thank
you to everyone for your contributions today throughout
the community roundtable, for your questions, your
comrents, your concerns and your responses. W're
going to continue tonorrow with the roundtable, and
we'll start where we left off with the community
representatives. And for those of you that are
travelling tonmorrow, | hope you all have a safe -- safe
travel s wherever you're going, whether it's hone or
el sewher e.

Just renenber to please turn off your headsets
before you | eave, put themon the table, and clean up
your seating area.

We' I | be back here tonmorrow at 9 AMto conti nue
the community roundtable in Day 7 of the public

heari ng.
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PROCEEDI NGS ADJOURNED UNTIL 9 AM SEPTEMBER 19, 2023

CERTI FI CATE OF TRANSCRI PT:

We, Sandra Burns and Derek Lopez, certify that the
foregoi ng pages are a conplete and accurate transcri pt
of the proceedi ngs taken down by us in shorthand and
transcribed fromour shorthand notes to the best of our
skill and ability.

Dated at the City of Ednonton, Province of
Al berta, this 9th day of Cctober 2023.

NS

Sandra Burns, CSR(A), RPR, CRR
Oficial Court Reporter

W

Derek Lopez, CSR(A), RPR

O ficial Court Reporter
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